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The emblem of the University takes the form of a circle with three concentric circles placed close 
together on the periphery, all on a background of yellow.  In the center of this circle is a smaller 

concentric circle enclosing a full bloom lotus, Nelumbo nucifera, in abstract from, and consisting of 
two tiers of petals one underneath the other.  In the center of the circle, stylized stamens enclosed in 
two concentric circles surround the receptacle.  Between the outer set of concentric circles and the 

central lotus is a wide circular band carrying the motto of the University on the upper half of the band, 
while the name of the University appears in the lower half, both written in Sinhala characters.  The 

motto, taken from an ancient Buddhist text, reads;

Vijja Uppatatam Settha

(‘among all that rise knowledge is greatest’)

VISION STATEMENT
Prosper lives through Learning

THE MISSION OF THE 
UNIVERSITY

To create and disseminate knowledge for the prosperity of the 
nation drawing inspiration from our cultural heritage

THE EMBLEM OF THE UNIVERSITY
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BRIEF  INTRODUCTION

The history of the University of Sri Jayewardenepura goes as far back as 1873 when the Most Venerable 
Chief Incumbent, Hikkaduwe Sri Sumangala Thero established this distinguished centre of learning as 
a “Pirivena” (Institute of Buddhist and Oriental Studies) named “Vidyodaya” meaning “Awakening of 
Knowledge”.

The University of Sri Jayewardenepura commenced on 16th February 1959 as the Vidyodaya University 
with the enactment of the Vidyodaya University and Vidyalankara University Act No. 45 of 1958.  At 
the inception the University was located in Maligakanda and was shifted in 1961 to the present location. 
In 1972, with the enactment of the University of Ceylon Act No. 1, Vidyodaya University was given the 
name Vidyodaya Campus, as all universities were called campuses under that decree. But it was revised 
again in 1978, and Universities Act No.16 of 1978 made them universities. With this turn, Vidyodaya 
Campus was named University of Sri Jayewardenepura.

COMPOSITION OF THE UNIVERSITY

The present faculty composition of the university is five : the Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences, 
Faculty of Applied Sciences, Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce, Faculty of Medical Sciences 
and the Faculty of Graduate Studies. The previous year, necessary action was taken for the establishment 
of two more faculties namely the Faculty of Engineering and Faculty of Technology. During the year 
under review much has been done in their progress. 

Apart from these the Postgraduate  Institute of Management (PIM)  located in Colombo 8,  is also 
affiliated to the University of Sri Jayewardenepura. 

In addition, the university has also been entrusted with a block of 40ha from the Yagirala Forest Reserve 
which is managed by the Sri Lanka Forest Department. This area is given to the Department of Forestry 
and Environmental Studies of the Faculty of Applied Sciences for promoting education and research. 
There is also a Research Centre built by the university which helps the researchers and those who have 
an educational interest in this area. It also serves as a Visitor Centre for the public who prefer to gain 
experience in rainforest life along with the surrounding villagers.  

The Faculty of Medical Sciences offers Medical and Para-Medical Degrees and two State Hospitals, 
namely, Colombo South Teaching Hospital, Kalubowila and Sri Jayewardenepura General Hospital, Sri 
Jayewardenepura are functioning as Teaching Hospitals of the Faculty.

The university is also a part of the “World Class University Project”, which is initiated and funded by the 
Ministry of Higher Education, taking progressive steps to improve the quality of our institution. 

Since the establishment of the University Seven (07) Chancellors and Twenty Four (24) Vice-Chancellors 
have been appointed by the President of the Democratic Republic of Sri Lanka to the University of Sri 
Jayewardenepura as given in Table 1.

REVIEW OF VICE CHANCELLOR
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Chancellor Period Vice-Chancellor Period

Sir Oliver  Goonetilleka, 
Governor  (Ex-Officio) 

1959 - 1962 Ven. Welivitiye Soratha Nayaka 
Thero

Jan. 1959 - 
July  1963

Hon. William Gopallawa, 
Governor (Ex-Officio)

1962 - 1977 Ven. Palannoruwe Sri 
Wimaladhamma Nayake Thero

Aug 1963 -
Sept. 1966

Ven. Parawahera Vajiragnana 
Nayake Thero

Mar. 1966  - 
Sept. 1966

Ven. Balangoda Ananda 
Maithriya Nayake  Thero

Oct. 1966 -
Nov. 1966

Ven. Dr. Walpola Rahula Thero Nov. 1966 -
July 1969

Prof. D.E. Hattiarachchi Aug. 1969 -
Aug. 1970

Prof. HemaEllawala (Vice-
Chancellor/Campus President)

Sept. 1970 - 
Sept. 1972

Prof. V.K. Samaranayake 
(Campus President)

Oct. 1972 -
Sept. 1973

Prof. M.D.C. Dharmawardena Mar. 1974 -
Jan. 1975

Prof. W.M.K. Wijayathunge Feb. 1975 -
May 1977

HE J.R. Jayawardana 
President (Ex-Officio) 

1978 –1979 Prof. K. Tuley de Silva June 1977 -
July 1978

Dr. E.W. Adhikaram 01-01-1979 to 
31-12-1983

Prof. K. Jinadasa Perera 
(Campus President/Vice-
Chancellor) 

Jan. 1979 -
Dec. 1981

Prof. T.B. Kangahaarachchi Jan. 1982 -
Jan. 1983

Dr. (Mrs.) Wimala de Silva 01-02-1984 to 
31-01-1989

Dr. Karunasena Kodituwakku 
(Competent Authority)

07 Feb. 1983 - 
12 March 1984

-do - 01-02-1989 to 
31-01-1994

Dr. Karunasena Kodituwakku 13 Mar. 1984 -
7 April 1988

-do- 01-02-1994 to 
31-01-1999

Prof. L.P.N. Perera April 1988 - 
Sept. 1990
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Chancellor Period Vice-Chancellor Period

-do- 01-02-1999 to 
31-01-2004 
(resigned on 31st 
August 2001)

Prof. S.B. Hettiarachchi Oct. 1990 -
Oct. 1992

Mr. W.B. Dorakumbura Nov. 1992 -
Oct. 1995

Prof. P. Wilson Nov. 1995 - 
April 1999

Prof. Tissa Kariyawasam Actg. 
Vice-Chancellor

May 1999

Ven. Medagoda Sumanatissa 
Thero

22-03-2002 to 
21-03-2007

Prof. J.W. Wickremasinghe June 1999 -
May 2002

Prof. Tissa Kariyawasam (Actg. 
Vice-Chancellor)

June 2002 -
Oct. 2002

Dr. D.S. Epitawatta October 2002 - 
Dec. 2003

Ven. Prof. Bellanwila 
Wimalarathana Thero, 

19-07-2005 to 
18-07-2010

Prof. Chandima Wijebandara 27 July 2004 - 
Oct. 2005

- do - 19-07-2010 to 
18-07-2015

Prof. Narada Warnasuriya Nov. 2005 -
30 Sept. 2008

Dr. N.L.A. Karunaratne (Actg. 
Vice-Chancellor)

Oct. 2008 -
Nov. 15, 2008

Dr. N.L.A. Karunaratne 16 Nov. 2008 - 
Nov. 15 2011

Dr. N.L.A. Karunaratne 16 Nov. 2011 - 
Nov. 15, 2014 

Prof. Sampath Amaratunge 17Nov. 2014 -
to date

Table 1 – List of Chancellors and Vice-Chancellors appointed by the President of the 
Democratic,  Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka.
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GENERAL

In the year under review the University of Sri Jayewardenepura accomplished many milestones both 
academically and non-academically. The smooth function in the university contributed to this progress. 
This year saw a number of achievements by the students both internally and externally of the university. 
The administration was effective and easy, and much development in infrastructure was also noted 
during the year. 

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

INTER-UNIVERSITY CHAMPIONSHIP GAMES
This year was a very successful one for the sports sector. The University won the entire championship for 
the first time in the games’ history. Excepting a few events, the players were able to win all other events, 
which resulted in a huge difference margin with those at the second place, in the overall win.

RESEARCH AWARDS
In an effort to encourage and promote research culture within the university, the first ever Research 
Awards Ceremony was held on 18th November 2015, for research done in year 2014. The winners were 
chosen under different categories among both veteran and new researchers,  and it also included a Best 
Researcher Award. 

CEREMONIAL REMEMBRANCE OF FOUNDERS
Commemorations of the founder of this University, then known as Vidyodaya Pirivena, Most Venerable 
Hikkaduwe Sri Sumangala Thero, and the first Vice-Chancellor of this University Most Venerable 
Welivitiye Soratha Thero were held on 29th April 2015 and 17th  July 2015 by Rev. Dr. Kirinde Assaji 
Thero and Emeritus Professor Malani Endagama respectively. 

FACULTIES OF TECHNOLOGY AND ENGINEERING 
The establishment of the two new Faculties, i.e. Faculties of Technology and Engineering took another 
step forward with the receipt of UGC approval during the year under review. 

REFURBISHED ENTRANCE GATE 
As the first project to be completed from the Township Project, the renewed entrance gate was 
ceremonially opened on 26th November 2015. 

NEW LOCATION FOR EXTERNAL EXAMINATIONS UNIT
The External Examinations Unit was shifted to its new location after acquiring the property facing the 
University. It was declared open on 11th July 2015.  

INTERNATIONAL CONFERENCES HELD
A considerable number of international conferences and workshops were hosted by the university 
during this year. These conferences opened access points for our researchers to exchange ideas with 
foreign academics. 
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•	 10th Annual Conference on Buddhist Studies held on 3rd and 4th January 2015

•	 Global Conference of Environmental and Sustainability Management Accounting  Network 
(EMAN) was held from 28th – 30th January 2015

•	 International Symposium on Polymer Science and Technology held from 3rd – 5th April 2015

•	 Energy Symposium Sri Lanka held on 26th June 2015

•	 2nd International Conference on Multidisciplinary Approaches held on 11th and 12th 
September 2015

•	 20th International Forestry and Environment Symposium held on 16th and 17th October 
2015

•	 HR Dialog International HR Conference held on 17th October 2015

•	 4th International Conference of Sri Lanka Forum of University Economists held on 20th and 
21st November 2015

•	 SLAAS Annual Sessions held from 30th November – 4th December 2015

•	 International Research Conference held on 3rd December 2015

•	 12th International Conference on Business Management (ICBM) held on 7th and 8th December 
2015

•	 International Neuroscience Workshop held from 14th – 20th December 2015

COLLABORATIONS WITH HIGHER EDUCATIONAL  INSTITUTIONS  ABROAD
During the year under review, many collaborations with foreign educational institutions were established. 
These programs are expected to cater to needs of students largely, as they will provide opportunities for 
them to collect information and gain experience through student exchange programs. 

•	 Memorandum of Understanding with Lovely Professional University, India

•	 Memorandum of Understanding with Kentucky University, USA 

•	 Memorandum of Understanding with Misamis University, Republic on Philippines

•	 Memorandum of Understanding with Mindanao State University, Republic of Philippines 

•	 Memorandum of Understanding with Nagoya University, Japan 

•	 Memorandum of Understanding with Mount Royal University, Canada and Kyoto University, 
Japan

•	 Memorandum of Understanding with University of Western Ontario, Canada

•	 Project between the Center for Sustainability, University of Sri Jayewardenepura and University 
of Western Australia on waste recycling.
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CURRENT PERFORMANCE SUMMARY

STUDENTS AFFAIRS AND WELFARE FACILITIES

2015 UNDERGRADUATE/POSTGRADUATE STUDENT OUTPUT

Faculty Departments Courses

Total  
Student 

population

No of 
Graduates  

2015

Total

Humanities and Social Sciences 11 25 3149 674

Applied Sciences 9 9 2088 445

Management Studies and Commerce 12 12 5100 1078

Medical Sciences 17 5 1074 204

Faculty of Graduate Studies -  2025

External Examination - 7 168500* 3698

Total student population of external Exam is includes students who renewing 
their registration from year 2004 and newly registrations.

DETAILS OF FOREIGN STUDENTS

Faculty Course Medium
Intake 
2015

1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th
No of 

Graduates
Year Student

FHSS - - - - - -

FAS Physical Sciences Eng 01

Food Science & 
Technology

Eng 01

FMSC B.Sc.  Special in Finance Eng 01

FMS MBBS Eng 1 - 11 1 03 01
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GRADUATE OUTPUT

Faculty
First 
Class

Second 
Upper

Second 
Lower

Pass
Total 

Passed

FHSS B.A.(General/Special) 94 357 139 84 674

FAS 40 110 88 207 445

FMSC 87 251 267 473 1078

FMS 08 38 80 78 204

229 756 574 842 2401

Total Passed

 FHSS BA (General/Special 28%

 FAS 19%

 FMSC 45%

 FMS 8%
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THE WORLD CLASS UNIVERSITY PROJECT 
(WCUP) – AN OVERVIEW YEAR OF 2015

W
or

ld
 R

an
k

6000

5000

4000

3000

2000

2012
2013

January
2014

January
2015

January
2016

January
2013
July

2014
July

2015
July

2758

3298

5969

4146

3090 3170

4282

3752

World Rank Fluctuation - USJP

Background: WCUP objectives were to focus on four parts which serves as measures for the University 
ranking: (A) 60% on Research and Citation (B) 2.5% on International Outlook (C) 7.5% on Industry 
Outcome (D) 30% on Teaching. The world ranking (WR): At the time the Present Director took over 
office WR was at 5,969 in July 2013, by 2014 July was 3090 (upliftment of 2879 positions) during 
which period 14 workshops conducted by the WCUP with the participation of international academics 
(Around 40). The fall of WR by 1192  from 2014 July to  2015 July, has been revised by 530 upliftment 
to 3752 during which period International  workshop was held with 32 international faculty and 11 
international participants ) (All International travel awards received by foreign funding bodies).

Funds distributed: 46,953,560 LKR in 2011 to 2013 for 19 for PhD research projects and 
92,325,688.39LKR for laboratory equipments and other expenditure till July, 2013.

International Reach –

MoU Signing for between University of Sri 
Jayewardenepura (USJP) and; Northern 
Kentucky University (NKU), USA on 10th 
June 2015
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A 7 day IBRO- APRC neuroscience workshop was organised at USJP on December, 2015 with 
participation of Honorable Ministers, 32 internationally acclaimed academics from Harvard Medical 
School, University of Cambridge, European Graduate School for Neuroscience, Netherland,, 
Washington DC, Jiao Tong University Shanghai, China, Kyoto Prefectural University, Japan etc. 
and clinicians, 11 international participants, 35 from Sri Lanka with more than 100 participants 
for each of 5 symposia: As a reflection of the symposium on “The use of natural products in health” 
Sri Lankan government released as Rs. 50 million to fund research Ceylon cinnamon.

Multidisciplinary Workshop on Buddha’s 
Investigation into “Samatha Vipassana”- 
Meditation and Mindfulness conducted by  
Professor Ann Kato , University of Geneva  
and on  2nd of January, 2015.

The meeting on Prevention of Chronic 
Kidney Disease of Unknown Etiology, CKDu 
and Welfare of Patience and their Affected 
Families by the Disease was held on the 
18th of March, 2015 at the Presidential 
Secretariat with His Excellency, President 
Maithripala Sirisena, Honourable Cabinet 
Ministers, Top government officials, World 
Health Organization, WHO representatives, 
and including the Director of World Class 
University Project, Prof. Ranil De Silva.

Prof. Yuansong Wei, Professor at Research Centre for Eco-Environmental Sciences, Chinese Academy of 
Sciences- (CAS); along with 10 delegates visited to USJP from 9th – 12th March, 2015 for a workshop 
on future collaboration for research & development between Sri Lanka & China and establishing 
collaboration with Chronic kidney Disease of Unknown Etiology (CKDu). 
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HOSTEL FACILITIES

Provision of hostels for University students and details of accommodation provided for are as follows:

Faculty Female Male Total

Humanities and Social Sciences 1704 365 2069

Applied Sciences 153 66 219

Management Studies & Commerce 996 479 1475

Medical Sciences 180 119 299

Total 3033 1029 4062

University owned hostels

Humanities and 
Social Sciences

Management 
Studies & 
Commerce

Applied Sciences Medical Sciences Total

1670 1221 176 90 3157

Hostel maintained by the University or rented and the number of students occupying the hostel are as 
follows

Humanities and 
Social Sciences

Management 
Studies & 
Commerce

Applied Science Medical Sciences Total

398 255 43 209 905

Total numbers of occupying the hostel		  =	 3157 + 905 = 4062 *100%   

						      =	 11074

Percentage of occupying the hostel		  =	 36%
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STAFF SUMMARY

SUMMARY OF ACADEMIC, ADMINISTRATIVE, ACADEMIC SUPPORTING 
STAFF AND NON ACADEMIC STAFF OF THE YEAR

ACADEMIC STAFF

Faculty Academic Staff

Faculty of  Humanities and Social Science 170

Faculty of Applied Science 195

Faculty of  Management Studies and Commerce 200

Faculty of Medical Science 135

Library 08

Includes only the Permanent Staff

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF AND ACADEMIC SUPPORTING STAFF

Administrative Staff 32

Other Executive Staff 03

Medical Officers 03

Academic Supporting 32

NON –ACADEMIC STAFF

Faculty Non Academic

Faculty of  Humanities and Social Sciences 47

Faculty of Applied Sciences 103

Faculty of  Management Studies and Commerce 57

Faculty of Medical Sciences 154

FGS 15

other Staff 371

Total 747
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DETAILS OF ACADEMIC STAFF MEMBERS WHO ARE ON STUDY LEAVE AND 
RESUMED DUTIES AFTER OBTAINING POSTGRADUATE QUALIFICATIONS

Faculty
Total Number of Academic 

Staff on  study leave as at 31-
12-2014

Number of Academic staff 
members resumed duties 

after obtaining Postgraduate 
Qualification (during year 

2012)

Faculty of Humanities and 
Social Sciences

11 05

Faculty of Applied Sciences 11 04

Faculty of Management Studies 
and Commerce

14 06

Faculty of Medical Sciences 15 01

GENERAL INTRODUCTION AND MANAGEMENT

Vidyodaya University was established under the provisions of Vidyalankara and Vidyodaya Universities 
Act No 45 on 1st of January 1959. In terms of University Act No 1 of 1972 it was named Vidyodaya 
Campus of University of Sri Lanka.  Under the provisions of Universities Act No.16 of 1978 it was 
renamed as the University of Sri Jayewardenepura. 

Academic and administrative functions of the University as well as policy planning are under taken by 
the Official Boards empowered under the University Act. The Administrative Council, Senate, Faculty 
Boards, and Post-Graduate Academic Boards are the Officials Boards of the University. 

Decisions of these Boards are put into effect through various designated officers of the University.
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OFFICERS OF THE UNIVERSITY

Chancellor	 Ven Professor Bellanwila Wimalaratana  Nayaka Thero

Vice Chancellor	 Prof.Sampath Amaratunge

Deans	

Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences	 Mr. C.L.K. Nawarathne 

Faculty of Applied Science  	 Prof.S.S.L.W.Liyanage 

Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce 	Dr. U.A.Kumara 

Faculty of Medical Sciences 	 Prof. (Mrs.) S.G.Yasawardena 

Faculty of Graduate Studies 	 Senior Prof. Swarna Piyasiri 

Registrar	 Mr.K.G. Britto 

Bursar	 Mrs. A.I.N.Pasqual	

Librarian	 Mrs. W.D.A.N.D.Wijayasundara

Proctor	 Mr.A.R.P.C.Udayakumara

Deputy Proctor of the Faculties

Humanities and Social Sciences	 Dr. Gamaini Ranasinghe 

Applied Sciences	 Prof. M.M.Pathmalal 

Management Stud:	 Mr.A.H.G.Karunaratne 

	 Dr. (Mrs.) M.A.K. Sriyalatha

	 Dr. N.W.K.D.K. Dayaratne

	 Mr. S.S. Naotunne

Medical Sciences	 Mr.P.P.R.Perera
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GOVERNING BODIES OF THE UNIVERSITY

The Council
Under paragraph 44 of section VII of the Universities Act No 16 of 1978 as amended by University 
Amendment Act No. 7 of 1985, the University Council comprised the following;

Ex-officio  members

Vice Chancellor (Chairman) 	 Prof.Sampath Amaratunge 

Registrar (Secretary)	 Mr.K.G. Britto 

Deans		

Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences	 Mr. C.L.K. Nawarathne 

Faculty of Applied Science  	 Prof.S.S.L.W.Liyanage 

Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce 	 Dr. U.A.Kumara 

Faculty of Medical Sciences 	 Prof. (Mrs.) S.G.Yasawardena 

Faculty of Graduate Studies 	 Senior Prof. Swarna Piyasiri 

Senate representatives

	 Senior Prof. Hemantha Peris	

	 Prof.B.G.D.N.K.D.Silva 

Members appointed by the University Grants Commission	

	 1.	 Ven. Dr.  Kirinde Assaji  Thero 	

	 2.	 Rev. Father Ivan Perera 

	 3.	 Emeritus Prof. M.M.Karunanayake (upto 12.02.2015)

	 4.	 Mr.T. Dharmarajah

	 5.	 Dr. R.M.K.Ratnayake  (upto 12.02.2015)

	 6.	 Dr P. Kiriwandeniya (upto 12.02.2015)

	 7.	 Mr. Mahinda Ranasinghe (upto 12.02.2015)

	 8.	 Mr. C.N.S.W. Mathew (upto 12.02.2015)

	 9.	 Mr. W.K.H. Wegapitiya (upto 12.02.2015)

	 10.	 Mr.H.T. Kamal Pathmasiri (from 15.05.2015)

	 11.	 Prof.(Mrs.) Kanthi Abenayeke (from 15.05.2015 to 10.09.2015)

	 12.	 Mr. Ashoka Hettigoda (from 15.05.2015)

	 13.	 Mr.Siri Ranasinghe (from 15.05.2015)

	 14.	 Mr.Sujeewa Rajapakse (from 15.05.2015)
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	 15.	 Mr.Roland Munasinghe (from 15.05.2015)

	 16.	 Mr.J.C.Weliamuna (form 19.11.2015)

Sub Committees of the Council
	 (i) 	 University Finance and Capital Works Committee

	 (ii) 	 Leave and Awards Committee

	 (iii)	 Audit and Management Committee

	 (iv)	 Planning and Development Committee

The Senate	
The Senate consisted of the appointed members under paragraph 46 of Universities Act No.16 of 1978.

Sub Committees of the Senate
	 (i)	 External Degrees Committee

	 (ii) 	 Research and Publications Committee

	 (iii)	 Computing Committee

Meetings

The Council, Senate and other authorities including nominated committees have met as follows during 
the year 2015

Number of Meetings
Council						     10

Senate						      14 (includes 02 special meetings)

Finance and Capital Works Committee		  11

Leave and Awards Committee			   12

Research Committee				    11

External Degrees Committee			   06

Planning and Development Committee     	 00

Audit and Management Committees		  04
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Organization Chart - University of Sri Jayawardenapura

FHSS - Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences (Arts)
FAS - Faculty of Applied Science
FMSC - Faculty of Management Studies & Commerce
FMS - Faculty of Medical Sciences
AE - Academic Establishment
GA - General Administration
DR - Deputy Registrar
DB - Deputy Bursar
DIA - Deputy Internal Auditor
CSO - Chief Security Officer
ASP - Academic and Students Affairs
DPE - Director/Physical Education
SAR - Senior Assistant Registrar

SAB - Senior Assistant Bursar
WE - Works Engineer
NAE - Non Academic Establishment
CW - Capital Works and Planning
D/CGU - Director Career Guidance Unit
AR - Assistant Registrar
AB - Assistant Bursar
CGU - Career Guidance Unit
CMO - Chief Medical Officer
D/SDC - Staff Development Centre
D/Ex. De - External Degree
D - Director
SW - Students Welfare

Dean
FHSS

Dean
FAS

Dean
FMSC

Dean
FMC

Dean
FGS

Heads of the
Departments

DR/SAR/AR
Faculties

CMO
SAB/AB
Faculties

SAB AB

SAR/AR
Library

DIA

Senate

D/CGU D/SW D/Ex.DD/SDC Proctor
Warden

(Male/Female)

Sub
Wardens

Chairperson SA
Librarian

LibrarianBursarRegister

Vice Chancellor

Council

DR/
AE

DR/
ASP

DR/
NAE

SAR/
SW

SAR/
Exam

SAR/
GA

SAR/
External

Exam

SAR/
Legal

AR/
NAE

AR/
CW

D/PECSOWE

DB
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ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICERS

Under the direction of the Registrar Mr. K.G. Britto the following officers carried out administrative 
functions.

Deputy Registrar, Academic Establishments

	 Mr.M.N.Thalagahagoda (2015.01.01 – 2015.05.04)

	 Mr. A.B. Welivita (2015.05.05 -  up to date)

Deputy Registrar, Academic, and Students Affairs

	 Actg. Mrs. A.R. Siriwardene 

	 Mr. L.L.W. Perera  (2015.05.05 -  up to date)

Deputy Registrar, Faculty of Graduate Studies 

	 Miss. A.M. Sriyanganie (2015.01.01 – 2015.05.04)

	 Mr. Nalinda Dharmaratne (2015.05.05 -  up to date)

Senior Assistant Registrar, Examinations

	 Miss. U.D.S.S. Gunasinghe  

Senior Assistant Registrar, External Examinations

	 Mrs. H K S D Geeganage 

Senior Assistant Registrar, Medical Sciences

	 Mrs. H P Weheragoda 

Senior Assistant Registrar/ Student Welfare

	 Mrs. K.P.Y.Thushari Malkanthi

Senior Assistant Registrar, Legal and Documentation

	 Mrs. P.K.C. Senerath 

Senior Assistant Registrar, Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences

	 Mrs. T.M.H.P.K. Gunathilake

	 Actg. Mr. Manjula Thalgahagoda

Assistant Registrar, Applied Sciences

	 Mrs. N. Matharaarachchi (2015.02.18 Up to date)

Assistant Registrar, Management Studies & Commerce

	 Miss. S.D.D. Hiranthi

	 Mrs. K.I. Malalgoda
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Assistant Registrar, General Administration and Services	

	 Miss. A.D.S. Samadarie  

Assistant Registrar, Capital Works and Planning

	 Mrs. N. Matharaarachchi (2015.01.01 – 2015.02.17)

	 Actg. Manjula Thalgahagoda (2015.06.01 – 2015.12.31)

	 Actg. L.L.W. Perera 

Assistant Registrar, Non Academic Establishment

	 Mrs. C.G. Balasooriya

Assistant Registrar, Library Services

	 Mr. K.D. Jayanayake

 Project Engineer

	 Mr. S.C. Athukorala (On Contract)

Works Engineer (Civil)

	 Mr. O.A.W. Karunaratna
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FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICERS

Under the direction of the Bursar Mrs. A.I.N. Pasqual who is a Charted Accountant, the following 
officers carried out financial administration functions.

Deputy Bursar

	 Mrs. P.H.C.M. Hiripitiya

	 Mrs. D.L.R. de Silva  

Deputy Internal Auditor

	 Mr. N. Wijayawardena  (On Assignment basis)

Senior Assistant Bursar, Supplies

	 Mrs. K.K.M.S.D.K. Galkaduwa

Senior Assistant Bursar, Payments

	 Miss. M.N. Suraweera 

Senior Assistant Bursar, Medical Sciences

	 Mrs. A.A.K.N. Ranasinghe 

Senior Assistant Bursar, Faculty of Management

	 Mr. K.H.U.D. Wasantha Kumara 

Studies & Commerce 

	 Mrs. P.L.C. Fernando

Senior Assistant Bursar, Faculty of

	 Mrs. W.J. Gunasekara 

Graduate Studies 	

Senior Assistant Bursar, External Examinations

	 Mrs. S. Walpola

Assistant Bursar, Faculty Humanities and Social Sciences

	 Mrs. G.W.L. Priyanthika   

Assistant Bursar, Faculty of Applied Sciences

	 Miss. M.G. Kumbukage 

Assistant Bursar, Payments

	 Miss M.C. Wickramaarachchi
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FACULTIES OF THE UNIVERSITY

The University consists of the following five faculties.

	 1.	 Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences

	 2.	 Faculty of Applied Science

	 3.	 Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce

	 4.	 Faculty of Medical Sciences

	 5.	 Faculty of Graduate Studies
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FACULTY OF HUMANITIES AND SOCIAL SCIENCES

The Faculty of Arts was established with the commencement of the Vidyodaya University on 1st January 
1959 at the Vidyodaya Pirivena at Malligakanda. Later the faculty was shifted to the present premises at 
Gangodawila.

By this time, the Faculty of Arts was re-constituted as the Faculty of Humanities & Social Sciences.

The Faculty of Humanities & Social Sciences is committed to the development of the community and the 
nation at large through the dissemination and enhancement of knowledge enriched with the country's 
cultural heritage.

Around 800 students are admitted annually and academic activities are conducted in 25 subjects leading 
to B.A General and Special Degrees. The faculty consists of ten academic departments and English 
Language teaching unit.

Department Head of Department

1. Department of Sinhala and Mass Communication Prof. A.V.D . Rathnasiri (from 01.03.2015)

Prof. Rev. K .Narada Thero (upto 28.02.2015)

2. Department of History and Archaeology Prof. P. B. Mandawala 

3. Department of Geography Prof (Mrs). T.M.S.P.K. Thennakoon

4. Department of Sociology and Anthropology Prof.M.T.Samarakoon (from 09.07.2015)

Prof. M.W.Jayasundara (upto 28.02.2015)

5. Department of Languages and Cultural studies Mr.D.P.Rathnayake

6. Department of Economics Mr. K.G.G.Weerasinghe

7. Department of Social Statistics Mr.  H. P. Diyunugala 

8. Department of English Mr. M.G.Lalith Ananda 

9. Department of Pali and Buddhist studies Dr.(Rev) Magammana Pannananda 

10. Department of Political Science Mr. P.L.T.Purasinghe

11. English Language Teaching Unit (ELTU) MR. D.L.S.Ananda 



University of Sri Jayewardenepura
Annual Report 201524

DEGREES AND DIPLOMAS AWARDED BY THE FACULTY

Degrees
		  01.	 B.A. General Degree
		  02.	 B.A. Special in Archaeology
		  03.	 B.A. Special in History
		  04.	 B.A. Special in Buddhist Civilization
		  05.	 B.A. Special in Buddhist Philosophy
		  06.	 B.A. Special in Philosophy and Psychology
		  07.	 B.A. Special in Pali 
		  08.	 B.A. Special in Hindi 
		  09.	 B.A. Special in Sanskrit
		  10.	 B.A. Special in Music & Cultural Studies
		  11.	 B.A. Special in Dance & Cultural Studies
		  12.	 B.A. Special in Economics
		  13.	 B.A. Special in Sociology
		  14.	 B.A. Special in Criminology
		  15.	 B.A. Special in Anthropology
		  16.	 B.A. Special in Sinhala
		  17.	 B.A. Special in Mass Communication
		  18.	 B.A. Special in Political Science
		  19.	 B.A. Special in English
		  20.	 B.A. Special in English Literature
		  21.	 B.A. Special in Social Statistics
		  22.	 B.A. Special in Business Statistics
		  23.	 B.A. Special in Geography
		  24.	 B.A. Special in Teaching English as a second language
		  25. 	 B.Sc. Special in Information Technology

Postgraduate Diploma Courses	
		  01.	 Postgraduate Diploma in Writer ship and Communication
		  02.	 Postgraduate Diploma in Sociology.
		  03.	 Postgraduate Diploma in Criminology
		  04.	 Postgraduate Diploma in Drama & Theatre

Diploma Courses	
		  01.	 Diploma in Writer ship and Communication
		  02.	 Diploma in Criminology 
		  03.	 “Daham Guru” Diploma 
		  04.	 Diploma in Rural Development 
		  05.	 Diploma in Geographical Information System(GIS) & Remote Sensing
		  06.	 Diploma in Buddhist Studies
		  07.	 Diploma in International Relations
		  08.	 Diploma in English

Certificate Courses:
		  01.	 Certificate Course in English
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DETAILS OF THE RESULTS RELEASED FROM THE FACULTY AS FOLLOWS

Degree
First 
Class

Second 
Upper

Second 
Lower

Pass
Total 

Passed

B.A (General) Normal 4 48 45 60 157

B.A (Special) Normal 90 309 94 24 517

B.A (General) Repeat - 01 02 17 20

B.A (Special) Repeat 01 03 01 03 08

B.A.(Special) (English Teachers) - - - - -

B.A.(General/Special) Total 95 361 142 104 702

COMPARE 2014 AND 2015 RESULTS RELEASED FROM THE FACULTY

Review of the results 
released Degree of the  

Faculty of Arts
First Class

Second 
Upper

Second 
Lower

Pass Total Passed

Year 2014 and 2015
year 
2014

Year 
2015

year 
2014

Year 
2015

year 
2014

Year 
2015

year 
2014

Year 
2015

year 
2014

Year 
2015

B.A(Special) 99 90 267 309 55 94 33 24 454 517

B.A.(General) 04 04 47 48 34 45 67 60 152 157

B.A (General) Repeat - - 01 01 04 02 29 17 34 20

B.A (Special) Repeat 01 01 03 03 01 01 24 03 29 08

B.A.(General) (English 
Teachers)

- - - - - - - - - -

Total 104 95 318 361 94 142 153 104 669 702
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DETAILS OF RESOURCES & STUDENTS

Faculty Course Total Students Total Academic Staff

Total non 
Academic 

Staff

H
um

an
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&
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ce

s

1st 
Year 

General

Special

Permanent Temporary

II III IV

Sinhala and Mass 
communication

847 348

44 63 36 15 04 02

History and Archaeology 88 78 72 13 02 02

Geography 67 70 55 11 04 06

Sociology and Anthropology 105 131 102 18 03 02

Language and Cultural Studies 39 35 22 12 04 02

Economics 47 59 45 10 02 03

Social Statistics 29 71 52 08 02 02

Pali  and Buddhist 191 82 87 15 06 02

Political Science 30 43 32 09 02 02

English 12 10 08 09 02 02

Teaching English as a second 
Language

14 - - - - -

B.SC IT 20 08 37 - - -

Total 686 650 548 120 31 25
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Course Medium
Intake 
2015

1st 
year

2nd 3rd 4th
No of 

Graduates

General

Si
nh

al
a/

E
ng

lis
h

858 847

133 215 - 156

Special Anthropology 26 20 06

Archaeology 33 26 20

Buddhist Civilization 51 42 02

Buddhist Philosophy 11 11 15

Business Statistics 14 47 36

Criminology 25 31 34

Dancing 16 12 09

Economics 47 59 45

Geography 67 70 55

Hindi 10 15 03

History 55 52 22

Mass Com. 14 28 20

Pali 05 08 06

Philosophy & 
Psychology

124 121 64

Political Science 30 43 32

Sanskrit 04 06 07

Sinhala 30 35 16

Sociology 54 80 62

Music 09 02 03

English 12 10 08

Social Statistics 15 24 16

B.Sc. IT 20 08 37

Teaching English as a 
second Language

14 - -

Total 847 819 965 518 672

Total 3149

DETAILS OF LOCAL STUDENTS
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DETAILS OF ACADEMIC STAFF
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Sinhala & Mass 
Communication

Si
nh

al
a/

 E
ng

lis
h

01 02 01 03 08 04 19

History & Archaeology 03 02 02 03 03 02 15

Geography 03 04 03 01 04 15

Sociology & 
Anthropology

02 01 08 05 02 03 21

Languages & Cultural 
Studies

01 03 05 02 01 04 16

Economics 01 03 05 - 01 03 01 14

Social Statistics 03 04 01 02 10

English 02 05 01 01 01 01 11

Pali & Buddhist 
Studies

03 02 09 01 06 21

E.L.T.U 03 02 03 02 10

Political Science 01 01 04 03 02 11

Computer Center 03 03

Dean’s Office 06 06

Total 1 12 8 31 54 3 18 5 3 37 172

46 PhD Holder Academics  in Faculty of Humanities & Social Sciences
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DETAILS OF NON –ACADEMIC STAFF
Fa

cu
lt

y 
of

 H
um

an
it

ie
s 

an
d 

So
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al
 S
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en

ce

Most 
Senior

Senior 
Staff

Junior 
Staff

Minor 
Employees

Total

Deans Office 02 08 08 18

Sinhala & Mass 
Communication

01 01 02

History & Archaeology 01 01 02

Geography 02 04 06

Sociology & Anthropology 01 01 02

Languages & Cultural 
Studies

01 01 02

Economics 01 02 03

Social Statistics 01 01 02

English 01 01 02

Pali & Buddhist Studies 01 01 02

E.L.T.U 01 01 02

Political Science 01 01 02

Computer Lab 01 01 02

Total 03 02 18 24 47

DETAILS OF RESEARCH, INNOVATION AND PUBLICATIONS

Fa
cu

lt
y 

of
 H

um
an

it
ie

s 
an

d 
So

ci
al

 
Sc

ie
nc

e

Subject Published Commercialized Presented

a.No of Researches 41 05 11

b.No of Innovations

c.No of Journals 05

d.No of Books 03 01

e.No of Articles 46 29 06

f.Other(Abstrcts,Conference 
Proceeding, Poster Presntation

20 03

Total 115 35 18
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Subject Attended Completed Presented

a.No of Postgraduate Degree Programme 21 04

b.No of Postgraduate Diploma Programme 01 01

c.No of Degree Programme 03 03

d.No of Diploma Programme 01 03

e.No of Certificate Programme 02 02

Total 27 04 10

DETAILS OF PROGRAMME, SEMINARS & WORKSHOPS

DETAILS OF AWARDS RECEIVED

Faculty of Humanities and Social Science

Subject No of Awards No  Academics No of Students

Local Awards 02 01 01 2015 Ranrasu Award

National Awards 01

International Awards 04 01 01

Other (Special Awards, prizes 
and Gold medals)

Faculty Gold Medal 01

Total 06 03 03
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FACULTY OF APPLIED SCIENCE

Faculty of Applied Sciences of the university which was established more than 50 years ago is one of 
the oldest among the Faculties of Science in Sri Lanka. Since inception it has grown much in intellectual 
capacity, teaching and research facilities, span of curricula and student numbers. At present it houses 
09 academic departments and Sport Science Programme with nearly 125 academic staff members, over 
2000 undergraduate students and close to 200 postgraduate students.

The Faculty has been in the forefront of pursuing several challenging and pioneering developments in 
the science education in Sri Lankan universities, including teaching in science in Sinhala, emphasizing 
applied aspects of science such as fisheries biology, food science & technology, polymer science & 
technology, forestry and environmental science and statistics and management in the B.Sc. curricula. 

Faculty of Applied Sciences consists of nine (09) Academic Departments as follows. 

Department Head of Department

1. Department of Botany Prof.(Mrs.) W.T.P.S.K. Senarath (upto 
30.04.2017)

2. Department of Chemistry Prof. P.P.M. Jayaweera(upto 28.03.2016)

3. Department of Computer Science Dr. E.A.T.A. Edirisuriya 

4. Department of Food Science and Technology Dr. M.A.J. Wansapala (from  15.11.2014)

5. Department of Forestry and Environmental Science Prof. Nilanthi Bandara 

6. Department of Mathematics Dr .R. Sanjeewa

7. Department of Physics Prof. P. Geekiyanage 

8. Department of Statistics Dr. R.S. Lokupitiya

9. Department of Zoology Prof. M.M. Pathmalal
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DEGREES AND DIPLOMAS AWARDED BY THE FACULTY

Degrees			 
		  01.	 B.Sc. General Degree
		  02.	 B.Sc. Special in Food Science and Technology
		  03.	 B.Sc. Special in Plant Biotechnology 
		  04.	 B.Sc. Special in Chemistry
		  05.	 B.Sc. Special in Computer Science
		  06.	 B.Sc. Special in Mathematics
		  07.	 B.Sc. Special in Physics
		  08.	 B.Sc. Special in Statistics
		  09.	 B.Sc. Special in Zoology
		  10.	 B.Sc. Special in Environmental Management & Forestry  
		  11.	 B.Sc. Special in Aquatic Science
		  12.	 B.Sc. Special in Plant Biology
		  13.	 B.Sc. Special in Microbiology 
		  14.	 B.Sc. Special in Sport Science & Management
		  15.	 B.Sc. Special in Biology 
		  16.	 B.Sc. (Honors) Degree in Applied Science

Postgraduate Courses
		  1.	 M.Sc./ Postgraduate Diploma in Applied Statistics
		  2.	 M.Sc./ Postgraduate Diploma  in Industrial Mathematics
		  3.	 M.Sc./ Postgraduate Diploma in Forestry & Environmental Management
		  4.	 M.Sc./ Postgraduate Diploma in Industrial Analytical Chemistry
		  5.	 M.Sc./ Postgraduate Diploma in Fisheries and Aquatic Resource Management 
		  6.	 M.Sc./  Postgraduate Diploma in Computer Science
		  7.	 M.Sc. Degree in Polymer Science & Technology
		  8.	 M.Sc. Degree in Science & Technology of Herbal Products
		  9.	 M.Sc. Degree in Food Science & Technology
		  10.	 M.Sc. Degree in Physical Education
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DETAILS OF THE RESULTS RELEASED FROM THE FACULTY FOR YEAR 2015 
AS FOLLOWS.

Degree
First 
Class

Second 
Upper

Second 
Lower

Pass
Total 

Passed

B.Sc. (Special) Aquatic Science 02 05 - - 07

B.Sc.(Special) Chemistry 08 12 05 01 26

B.Sc.(Special) Computer Science 01 09 - - 10

B.Sc.(Special) Food Science and Tech. 11 09 01 01 22

B.Sc.(Special) Forestry and Env. Sci. 03 07 - - 10

B.Sc.(Special) Mathematics 01 03 04 - 08

B.Sc.(Special) Physics 02 09 02 02 15

B.Sc.(Special) Statistics 07 05 01 - 13

B.Sc.(Special) Zoology 01 06 - - 07

B.Sc.(Special) Microbiology 01 03 - - 04

B.Sc.(Honors) Degree in Applied Sciences - 18 27 08 53

Total -  B.Sc.(Special) 37 86 40 12 175

Total -  B.Sc.(General) 3 24 48 195 270

Total 40 110 88 207 445
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COMPARISON OF  2014 AND 2015 RESULTS RELEASED FROM THE FACULTY

Review of the results 
released Degree of the  

Faculty of Arts
First Class

Second 
Upper

Second 
Lower

Pass Total Passed

Year 2014 and 2015
year 
2014

Year 
2015

year 
2014

Year 
2015

year 
2014

Year 
2015

year 
2014

Year 
2015

year 
2014

Year 
2015

B.Sc (Special) Aquatic 
Science

02 02 05 05 - - - - 07 07

B.Sc.(Special) 
Chemistry

11 08 08 12 06 05 01 01 26 26

B.Sc.(Special) 
Computer Science

05 01 07 09 01 - 01 - 14 10

B.Sc.(Special) Food 
Science and Technology 

06 11 10 09 02 01 03 01 21 22

B.Sc.(Special) Forestry 
and Env. Sci.

07 03 04 07 - - - - 11 10

B.Sc.(Special) 
Mathematics

08 01 08 03 01 04 - - 17 08

B.Sc.(Special) Physics 10 02 01 09 - 02 - 02 11 15

B.Sc.(Special) Plant 
Biotechnology

04 - 06 - - - - - 10 -

B.Sc.(Special) Statistics 09 07 02 05 - 01 - - 11 13

B.Sc.(Special) Zoology 02 01 08 06 - - - - 10 07

B.Sc.(Special) 
Microbiology

- 01 - 03 - - - - - 04

B.Sc.(Honors) Degree 
in Applied Sciences

- - - 18 - 27 - 08 - 53

B.Sc. (General) 01 03 13 24 30 48 177 195 221 270

Total 65 40 72 110 40 88 182 207 359 445

DETAILS OF RESOURCES & STUDENTS

Faculty Course Total Students
Total Academic 

Staff
Total non 

Academic Staff

A
pp

lie
d 

Sc
ie

nc
e

Biological Science 689

118 103

Physical Science 778

Food Science and Technology 168

Sport Science & Management 120

Other special courses 240

B.Sc.(Honors) Degree 93

Total 2088
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DETAILS OF LOCAL STUDENTS
Fa

cu
lt

y

Course Medium
Intake 
2015

Year Student
No of 

Graduates1st year 2nd 3rd 4th

A
pp

lie
d 

Sc
ie
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e

Biology (General)

E
ng

lis
h

258 258 233 274 71

445

Physical Science (General) 287 287 290 251 43

Food Science and 
Technology

53 53 36 42 37

Sport  Science & 
Management

42 42 41 37 00

B.Sc.(Honors) Degree - - - - 93

Total 640 640 600 604 244 2088
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Office of the Dean English - - - - - - - - 02 01 03

Chemistry English 02 03 02 03 12 - - 04 - 14 40

Statistics English - - - 02 02 01 - 02 - 04 11

Computer Science English - 01 - 02 03 - - 03 02 04 15

Botany English - 03 - 01 02 01 - 04 - 10 21

Physics English - - 01 05 05 - - 05 - 13 29

Zoology English 01 04 - 04 01 - 01 02 - 09 22

Mathematics English 01 - - 04 04 - 01 03 - 08 21

Forestry and Env. Sci. English - 04 - - 04 01 - 01 - 06 16

Food Sci. & Technology English - 01 - 01 05 - 01 02 - 04 14

Degree Programme 
of Sports  Science & 
Management

- - - - 01 - - 02 - - 03

Total 04 16 03 22 39 03 03 28 04 73 195

62 PhD Holder Academics  in Faculty of Humanities & Social Sciences

DETAILS OF ACADEMIC STAFF
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DETAILS OF NON-ACADEMIC STAFF

Faculty
Most 

Senior
Senior 
Staff

Junior 
Staff

Minor 
Employees

Total

Faculty of Applied Science 22 13 15 53 103

DETAILS OF RESEARCH, INNOVATION AND PUBLICATIONS

Fa
cu

lt
y 

of
 A

pp
lie

d 
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ie
nc

e

Subject Published Commercialized Presented

a. No of Researches 32

b. No of Innovations 1

e. No of Journals 27

f. No of Books 12

g. No of Articles 83

h. Other (Research Papers)

Total 156

DETAILS OF PROGRAMME, SEMINARS & WORKSHOPS

Fa
cu

lt
y 

of
 A

pp
lie

d 
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ie
nc

es

Subject Attended Completed Presented

a. No of Postgraduate Degree Programme 7

b. No of Postgraduate Diploma Programme

c. No of Degree Programme

d. No of Diploma Programme

e. No of Certificate programme 1

f. other

Total 8
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DETAILS OF AWARDS RECEIVED

Faculty of Applied Sciences

Subject No of Awards No Academics No of Students

Local Awards 3

National Awards 2

International Awards 2

Other (Special Awards, prizes and Gold medals)

Total 7

DETAILS OF NEW COURSES STARTED

Faculty Course Medium

Fa
cu

lt
y 

of
 A

pp
lie

d 
Sc

ie
nc

es

B. Sc. Biology English

B.Sc. (General) in Food Sci. as a subject. English

B. Sc. (General) Biology as a subject. English

B.Sc. (General) Information and 
Communication Technology as a subject.

English

B. Sc. (Special) in Plant biology English

B. Sc. (Special) in Microbiology. English

B. Sc. (General) in Microbiology. English

B. Sc. (General) in Plant Biology. English

B. Sc. (Special) in Plant Biology. English

M.Sc./ PG Diploma in Fisheries and Aquatic 
Resources Management. 

English

M.Sc./ PG Diploma in Forestry and 
Environmental Management.

English

B.Sc. Special in Sport Science & Management. English
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FACULTY OF MANAGEMENT STUDIES AND 
COMMERCE

The Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce is the pioneering management faculty in Sri Lankan 
university system which is regarded as the Centre of Excellence in Management Education in Sri Lanka. 
Management education at University of Sri Jayewardenepura also has a history of more than 50 years. 

The first programmes of study was commenced in 1959/60 with the introduction of two undergraduate 
degree programmes in Business Administration and Public Administration under the Department 
of Economics, Business and Public Administration of Faculty of Arts. In 1968 the Department was 
reconstituted as the Department of Management Studies under Faculty of Arts. Under the reorganization 
of the university system, the Department of Management Studies was elevated to Faculty status and the 
Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce (FMSC) was established with two Departments, namely, 
the Department of Management Studies and the Department of Commerce in  1972.

Having been strengthened by twelve academic departments at present the Faculty offers globally 
competitive degree programmes in the broad areas of Management and Commerce. Indeed, for the last 
four decades, the Faculty has been the most popular faculty, particularly among the students who have 
excelled in Advanced Level in the Commerce Stream. Yet, the Faculty’s role in Sri Lankan higher education 
sector is not restricted to the undergraduate education. The Faculty is also committed to Continuous 
Professional Developments and Lifelong Learning of the leaders in the World of Work. Therefore, it 
offers – in collaboration with the Faculty of Graduate Studies – a range of highly recognized postgraduate 
programmes, including PhD, MBA, MPA and M.Sc. in Management. Further, by recognizing the need of 
wider Sri Lankan society for the higher education, the Faculty conducts a number of external/part-time 
degree, diploma and Certificate programmes in Management and Commerce.

Dean Dr. U. Anura Kumara

Academic Departments in the Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce and the Heads of the 
respective Departments during the year 2014 are as follows.

Department Head of Department

1. Department of Business Administration Mr. M.A.M. Gunasekara 

2.Department of Public Administration

Prof. (Mrs.) R. Lalitha  S. Fernando (from 
01.07.2015)

Dr. M.H.A. Sisira Kumara

3. Department of  Commerce
Mr. S.S. Naotunna (from 01.07.2015)

Prof . E. Dayarathne

4. Department of Estate Management and Valuation Prof. R.G. Ariyawansa 

5. Department of Accounting Dr. W.G.S. Kelum
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Department Head of Department

6. Department of Marketing Management Dr.(Mrs) M.A.A. Malkanthi 

7. Department of Human Resource Management  Prof. K.H. Hemantha Kumara 

8. Department of  Finance
Prof. D.B.P.H. Dissa Bandara (from 07.08.2015)

Dr.  P.D.Nimal

9. Department of  Business Economics Dr.(Mrs) M.S.S. Perera

10. Department of  Information Technology Dr.(Mrs.) S.M.Samarasinghe 

11. Department of  Decision Science Prof. T.M.B. Palawatte

12.  Department of Entrepreneurship Mr. R.N. Weerasinghe

DEGREES, DIPLOMAS AND CERTIFICATES AWARDED BY THE FACULTY

Internal Bachelors Degree Programmes
		  01.	 B.Sc. Business Administration (Special) 
		  02.	 B.Sc. Public Management (Special) 
		  03.	 B.Com (Special)  
		  04.	 B.Sc. Estate Management and Valuation (Special)
		  05.	 B.Sc. Accounting (Special) 
		  06.	 B.Sc. Marketing Management (Special) 
		  07.	 B.Sc. Human Resource Management (Special) 
		  08.	 B.Sc. Finance (Special) 
		  09.	 B.Sc. Business Information Systems (Special) 
		  10.	 B.Sc. Operations & Technology Management (Special) 
		  11.	 B.Sc. Business Administration (Business Economics) (Special) 
		  12.	 B.Sc. Entrepreneurship (Special)

External Bachelors Degree Programmes
		  01.	 B.Com (General) 
		  02.	 B.Sc. Business Administration (General) 
		  03.	 B.Sc. Management (Public) General 

Advanced Diploma Programmes 
		  01.	 Advanced Diploma in Computer Based Accounting
		  02.	 Advanced Diploma in Marketing Management
		  03.	 Advanced Diploma in Entrepreneurial Business Management
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Diploma Programmes
		  01.	 Diploma in Public Management
		  02.	 Diploma in Computer Based Accounting
		  03.	 Diploma in Marketing Management
		  04.	 Diploma in Entrepreneurial Business Management

Certificate Courses
		  01.	 Certificate in Computer Based Data Analysis
		  02.	 Certificate in Entrepreneurial Business Management

Degree
Pass with 

First 
Class

Pass with 
Second 
Upper

Pass with 
Second 
Lower

Pass Total 

B.Sc. Business Administration (Special) 07 46 64 112 229

B.Sc. Public Management (Special) - 10 13 41 64

B.Com (Special) 01 14 37 68 120

B.Sc. Estate Management and Valuation 
(Special)

- 05 08 39 52

B.Sc. Accounting (Special) 35 71 37 38 181

B.Sc. Marketing Management (Special) 07 17 26 31 81

B.Sc. Human Resource Management 
(Special)

07 28 17 14 66

B.Sc. Finance (Special) 18 33 37 61 149

B.Sc. Business Administration(Business 
Economics) (Special)

09 13 13 19 54

B.Sc. Business Administration (Information 
Systems) (Special)

- 07 07 33 47

 B.Sc. Operations & Technology 
Management (Special)

02 04 05 07 18

 B.Sc. Entrepreneurship (Special) 01 03 03 10 17

Total 87 251 267 473 1078

DETAILS OF THE RESULTS RELEASED IN 2015 FROM THE FACULTY.
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Review of the results 
released Degree of the  

Faculty of Arts
First Class

Second 
Upper

Second 
Lower

Pass Total Passed

Year 2014 and 2015
year 
2014

Year 
2015

year 
2014

Year 
2015

year 
2014

Year 
2015

year 
2014

Year 
2015

year 
2014

Year 
2015

B.Sc. Business 
Administration 
(Special)

10 07 51 46 72 64 93 112 226 229

B.Sc. Public 
Management (Special)

- - 6 10 34 13 43 41 83 64

B.Com (Special) 2 01 17 14 36 37 65 68 120 120

B.Sc. Estate 
Management and 
Valuation (Special)

1 - 12 05 18 08 30 39 61 52

B.Sc. Accounting 
(Special)

29 35 65 71 51 37 41 38 186 181

B.Sc. Marketing 
Management (Special)

6 07 20 17 21 26 24 31 71 81

B.Sc. Human Resource 
Management (Special)

3 07 24 28 14 17 15 14 56 66

B.Sc. Finance (Special) 12 18 45 33 46 37 35 61 138 149

B.Sc. Business 
Administration 
(Business Economics) 
(Special)

2 09 9 13 16 13 21 19 48 54

B.Sc. Business 
Information Systems 
(Special)

1 - 6 07 12 07 25 33 44 47

B.Sc. Operations 
& Technology 
Management (Special)

2 02 6 04 6 05 7 07 21 18

B.Sc. Entrepreneurship 
(Special)

- 01 4 03 5 03 6 11 15 17

Total 68 87 265 251 331 267 405 473 1069 1078

COMPARE 2014 (FEB. 2014) AND 2015(FEB. 2015) RESULTS RELEASED

•	 Results of Examination held in February 2014(Effective date of Degree 03.02.2014)

•	 Results of Examination held in January  2015(Effective date of Degree 27.01 .2015)
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NO. OF STUDENTS & ACADEMIC AND NON ACADEMIC RESOURCES

Department Total Students

Management Common programme (Faculty) 1245

Business Administration 738

Public Administration 285

Commerce 406

Estate Management and  Valuation 235

Accountancy 655

Marketing    Management 284

Human Resource Management 195

Finance 485

Entrepreneurship 27

Business   Economics 190

Information  Technology 205

Decision  Science 150

Total 5100

Total Academic Staff			   - 169

Total Non- Academic Staff		  -  61
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DETAILS OF LOCAL STUDENTS
Fa

cu
lt

y

Course Medium
Intake 
2015

Year Student
No of 

Graduates1st year 2nd 3rd 4th

A
pp

lie
d 

Sc
ie

nc
e

Management Common 
Programme

E
ng

lis
h

1245 - - - - -

Business Administration 239 262 237 738 738

Public Administration 93 117 75 285 285

Commerce 128 151 127 406 406

Estate Management and 
Valuation

80 94 61 235 235

Accountancy 216 241 198 655 655

Marketing Management 92 90 102 284 284

Human Resource 
Management

72 52 71 195 195

Information Technology 71 82 52 205 205

Decision Science 56 48 46 150 150

Finance 154 184 147 485 485

Business Economics 66 61 63 190 190

Entrepreneurship 07 09 11 27 27

Faculty Office 10 16 05 - -

1245 3855

DETAILS OF NON-ACADEMIC STAFF

Faculty
Most 

Senior
Senior 
Staff

Junior 
Staff

Minor 
Employees

Total

Faculty of  Management Studies and 
Commerce

5 12 22 18 57
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Fa
cu
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y 

of
  M

an
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em
en

t 
St

ud
ie

s Subject Completed Presented

a. No of Researches - 96

b. No of Innovations - -

e. No of Journals - 04

f. No of Books - 30

g. No of Articles - 11

h. Other - 15

Total - 156

Subject
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m

Se
ni

or
 P

ro
fe

ss
or

Pr
of

es
so

r
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ss
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1

Se
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r 

11
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or
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r 

(C
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t)

Le
ct

ur
er
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ct

ur
er

 (
Pr

ob
)

Te
m
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ry
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r

Te
m

. T
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/ 
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or
s/

 C
om

. 
Te
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u.
C

C
om
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l

Business Admn.

E
ng

lis
h

- - - 06 04 - 01 09 - - 20

Public Admn. - 01 - 02 02 - 01 03 - 05 14

Commerce - 01 - 01 01 - 02 04 - 02 11

Estate Mgt. and 
Valuation 

- 02 - 03 02 - 01 02 - 02 12

Accounting 01 02 - 09 08 - 02 02 - - 24

Marketing - 02 - 01 04 - 01 04 - - 12

Human Resource Mgt. 01 01 - 04 06 - - - - 01 13

Information 
Technology

- - - 04 08 - 02 01 - 07 22

Decision Sciences - 01 - 04 07 - - 01 - 03 16

Business Economics - 01 - 06 05 - 03 03 - 03 21

Finance 01 01 01 03 03 - 01 04 - 01 15

Entrepreneurship - - - 01 01 - - 05 02 - 09

ITRC - - - - - - - - - 04 04

Business 
Communication

- - - - 02 - - 04 - 01 07

Total 03 12 01 44 53 - 14 42 02 29 200

DETAILS OF ACADEMIC STAFF

DETAILS OF RESEARCHES, INNOVATIONS AND PUBLICATIONS
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DETAILS OF PROGRAMME OFFERED BY THE FACULTY
Fa

cu
lt

y 
of

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

St
ud

ie
s 

an
d 

C
om

m
er

ce

Subject Attended Completed Presented

a. No of Degree Programmes - - 12

b. No of Advanced  Diploma Programmes - - 03

c. No of Diploma Programmes - - 04

d. No of Certificate programmes - - 02

e. Other Programmes conducted by the Faculty

Research Sessions

International Conference 

Conferences

Forums

Workshops

Projects

Seminars

Trainings

Fieldtrip

Staff  Dev. Programme

Guest Lectures  

Activities

-

-

02

-

64

-

59

22

-

-

26

22

-

-

-

-

-

08

-

-

-

-

-

-

02

01

01

01

07

-

06

02

06

06

05

46
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FACULTY OF MEDICAL SCIENCES

Faculty of Medical Sciences was established in 1993 as the fourth Faculty of the University of Sri 
Jayewardenepura. By the year 2006, the faculty developed into a full-fledged Faculty consisting   of 17 
Departments.   For the first time in Sri Lanka, the Faculty commenced degree programmes to B.Sc. in 
Nursing, Bachelor of Pharmacy and B.Sc. Medical Laboratory Science.

This is only Faculty in the University, which on its own handle registering of students, conducting 
examinations and deal with financial matters.  In 2013 a new Department of Allied Health Sciences was 
established. 

Academic Departments in the Faculty of Medical Sciences and the Heads of the respective Departments 
during the year 2015 are as follows.

Department Head of Department

1. Department of Anatomy
Prof. Mrs. S.G.Yasawardene

Dr. P.H. Dissanayake (from 17.11.2014)

2. Department of Physiology Prof. Mrs. S.W.Wimalasekara 

3. Department of Biochemistry Prof. Mrs. U.G. Chandrika 

4. Department of Parasitology Prof. Mrs. D.R.Wickramasinghe 

5. Department of Microbiology Dr. Mrs. G.N.Malavige 

6. Department of Pathology Dr. Mrs.  I. Premathilaka

7. Department of Pharmacology Dr.Mrs. P.A.P.G. Jayawardena 

8.  Department of Community Medicine Dr. W.A.A. Wijayasiri

9. Department of Forensic Medicine Dr. S.R. Hulathduwa 

10. Department of Medicine Prof. Saman Guanathilake

11. Department of Obstetrics and Gynaecology Dr. Mrs. Ramya Pathiraja

12. Department of Paediatrics
Prof. D.P.S.Gunasekara

Dr. Mrs. G.S.H. Liyanage (from 15.03.2014)

13. Department of Surgery Prof. D.D.Weerasekera 

14. Department of Psychiatry Dr. Mrs. K.P.M. Kulathunge
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15. Department of Family Medicine
Dr. A.L.P. de Seneviratne

Dr. Mrs. T.S.P. Samaranayake (from 20.05.2014) 

16. Department of Medical Education and Health 
Sciences

Dr. R.B. Marasinghe

17. Department of Allied Health Sciences
Prof. Mrs. K. Samarasinghe 

Dr. P.P.R. Perera (from 17.11.2014)

DEGREES AND DIPLOMAS AWARDED BY THE FACULTY

Degrees awarded by the Faculty
		  01	 MBBS Degree
		  02. 	 B. Pharm Degree
		  03.	 B.Sc. Nursing Degree
		  04. 	 B.Sc. Human Biology Degree
		  05.	 B.Sc. in M.L.S (Medical Laboratory Science) Degree

Diplomas
		  01.	 Diploma in Counseling

DETAILS OF THE RESULTS RELEASED FROM THE FACULTY AS FOLLOWS - 
2015

Degree
Pass with 

First 
Class

Pass with 
Second 
Upper

Pass with 
Second 
Lower

Pass Total 

MBBS Degree 05 19 58 71 153

B. Pharm Degree 01 05 01 12 07

B.Sc. Nursing Degree - 04 07 04 15

B.Sc. Human Biology Degree - 02 - - 02

B.Sc. in MLS Degree 02 08 14 03 27

Total 08 38 80 78 204
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COMPARE 2014 AND 2015 RESULTS RELEASED FROM THE FACULTY

Review of the results 
released Degree of the  

Faculty of Arts
First Class

Second 
Upper

Second 
Lower

Pass Total Passed

Year 2014 and 2015
year 
2014

Year 
2015

year 
2014

Year 
2015

year 
2014

Year 
2015

year 
2014

Year 
2015

year 
2014

Year 
2015

MBBS Degree 08 08 38 24 54 63 50 60 150 155

P. Pharm Degree 02 - 05 04 03 10 10 12 20 26

B.Sc. Nursing Degree 02 01 09 06 07 11 07 09 25 27

B.Sc. Human Biology 
Degree

01 - 04 - 01 02 - 02 06 04

B.Sc. in MLS Degree 01 04 01 08 06 08 09 10 17 30

DETAILS OF RESOURCES & STUDENTS

Faculty Course Total Students
Total 

Academic Staff
Total non 

Academic Staff

Medical 
Sciences

MBBS - 786
B.Pharm - 91
Nursing - 86
Human Biology - 05
MLS - 106

1074 135 155

DETAILS OF LOCAL STUDENTS

Fa
cu

lt
y

Course Medium
Intake 
2015

Year Student
No of 

Graduates
1st year 2nd 3rd 4th

M
ed

ic
al

MBBS Degree

E
ng

lis
h

154 156 173 148 155 153

B.Sc. Nursing 20 22 23 21 - 15

B.Pharm 12 22 33 24 - 07

B.MLS 27 20 32 27 - 27

B.Sc. Human Biology 03 02 - - - 02

Total 216 222 261 220 155 204
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Anatomy - 1 1 3 1 3 - - 9

Physiology - 1 2 4 - 3 - 10

Biochemistry 1 3 - 3 1 - - - 8

Parasitology - 1 - 1 1 1 - - 4

Microbiology - 3 - 5 - - - - 8

Pathology - - 1 9 2 - - - 12

Pharmacology - 1 - 3 - 3 - - 7

Community Medicine 1 - - 3 - - - 1 5

Forensic Medicine - - - 5 - - - - 5

Medicine - 4 - 3 - 1 - - 8

Obstetrics and Gynaecology - - - 5 - - - - 5

Paediatrics - - 1 4 - - - - 5

Surgery 1 3 - 2 - - - - 6

Psychiatry - 1 - 4 - 2 - - 7

Family Medicine - - - 1 - 4 - - 5

Medical Education and Health 
Sciences

- - - 1 - 1 - - 2

Allied Health Sciences

B.Pharm. - - - 4 - 5 - - 9

Nursing - - - 4 1 5 - - 10

MLS - - - 2 1 3 - - 6

Resource Centre - - - - - 2 - 1 3

Total 3 18 5 66 6 34 - 3 135

DETAILS OF ACADEMIC STAFF
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DETAILS OF  NON-ACADEMIC STAFF

Faculty Most Senior Senior Staff Junior Staff
Minor 

Employees
Total

Medical Faculty 09 15 69 61 154

DETAILS OF RESEARCH, INNOVATION AND PUBLICATIONS

Fa
cu

lt
y 

of
   

M
ed

ic
al

 S
ci

en
ce

s

Subject Published Commercialized Presented

a. No of Researches 39 - 31

b. No of Innovations - - -

e. No of  Journals - - -

f. No of Books - - -

g. No of Articles 33 - 06

h. Other

Total 72 37

DETAILS OF AWARDS RECEIVED

Faculty Medical Science

Subject No of Awards
No of  

Academics
No of Students

Local Awards 22 20 -

National Awards 11 08 -

International Awards 04 04 -

Other (Special Awards, prizes and Gold medals) - - -

Total 37 32 -
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FACULTY OF GRADUATE STUDIES

Faculty of Graduate Studies (FGS) in the University of Sri Jayewardenepura was established in 1996 
under the provisions of the Faculty of Graduate Studies Ordinance No. 3 of 1987.Since then this Faculty 
expanded with its activities by bringing all the postgraduate courses of the university under its purview 
and coordination. Initially it was established in temporary building of the university and then shifted 
to a new building on 18th October 2010 with all the modern facilities to meet the postgraduate work.

FGS functional model differs from the existing undergraduate faculty model. FGS consist of Study 
Boards instead of Departments. These Study Boards are the active decision making units of the Faculty. 
Initially there were six Study Boards and a new Study Board which focuses on multidisciplinary studies 
was established in 2011 with the senate & council approvals. The seven Study Boards of the faculty are 
given below:

Humanities

Social Sciences

Management and Commerce

Life Sciences

Physical sciences

Medical Sciences

Multidisciplinary studies

With the establishment of two new faculties ie. Engineering and Technology, there would be two new 
study boards added to the existing structure. 

FGS model is focused to initiate multidisciplinary research activities among the members of the Study 
Boards interactively as the study boards consist of mixture of academics from various disciplines from 
the different faculties.

Each Study Board is chaired by a senior academic with a high level of professional caliber. The members 
of the study boards are the academic members of the university who are actively involved in research 
work, postgraduate supervision. Those who serve as the coordinators in postgraduate programs are also 
included in the Study Boards.

The decisions taken in the above seven Study Boards will be taken up for discussion, further consideration 
and for recommendation to the approval of the Senate by the Faculty Board meeting chaired by the Dean 
of the Faculty. 

Faculty Board of the Graduate Studies consist of the deans of all four faculties, three senate nominees, 
three council nominees and the Chairpersons of the Study Boards as invited members.

There are two major types of degree programs offered by the Faculty namely; the research degrees 
(Ph.D., M Phil, MA & M Sc) and degrees offered by course work where a research component also is 
involved.

The degrees with course work and a research component have been designed to provide necessary 
conceptual background to the candidate through lectures, required practical training, industrial training 
and field work in specific areas. These programs are offered at two levels namely; the postgraduate 
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diploma level or the M Sc, MBA, MPM, or MA. In some programs progression is possible form the 
postgraduate diploma to the Master level degrees.

Recently the Multidisciplinary Study Board initiated compulsory course units for the Ph D students. The 
students registered in this Study Board have to complete this course unit component during its first year 
and it is a requirement for the upgrading from M Phil status to Ph D level. Management Study Board also 
initiated a new Ph D Program and the candidates registered for this Ph.D. Program have to follow one 
year course work component before commencing their research project.

 Faculty of Graduate Studies (FGS)  has awarded 121 Ph D degrees, 160 M Phil degrees, 101 MA degrees, 
1100 MSc degrees and 281 Master of Business Administration 1421 Postgraduate Diplomas from 1996 
to 2015 and there is a significant increase of student numbers registered for postgraduate degrees.

The web page of the Faculty provides all the information of the faculty activities. It will be helpful for the 
candidates to get all the required information through the internet and make their decisions efficiently. 
A staff member is being trained to update the Faculty web site regularly. A Management Information 
System is being developed for the Faculty with a view to enhance the efficiency and effectiveness of the 
functions and to provide a high quality service to the students.  A Learning Management System is also 
being developed for the Faculty which will facilitate both teachers and students to participate in the 
teaching learning process.

It is expected to take a strong initiative within the next five years to progress the FGS from its present status 
to a level of a Graduate School. It is envisaged that a Graduate School will have greater administrative 
and financial autonomy to conduct all the Faculty activities. Steps have been taken for this progression 
from 2014 onwards to reach its effective level at the end of 2020.

DEGREES, DIPLOMAS AND CERTIFICATES AWARDED BY THE FACULTY

Humanities 
01.	 Ph.D in  Sinhala, Mass Communication, Culture Studies, Sanskrit, Buddhist 

Civilization, Buddhist Philosophy, Pali, 
02.	 M.Phil. in Sinhala, Mass Communication, Culture Studies, Sanskrit, Buddhist 

Civilization, Buddhist Philosophy, Pali, English
03.	 MA in Sinhala. Sinhala, Mass Communication, Culture Studies, Sanskrit, Buddhist 

Civilization, Buddhist Philosophy, Pali, Hindi, English
04.	 Post Graduate Diploma in Writer ship & Mass Communication
05.	 Diploma in Drama Theater  (To be introduced)

Social Sciences.
01.	 Ph.D in History, Archeology. Geography, Anthropology, Sociology, Criminology, 

Economics, 
02.	 M.Phil.  in History, History, Archeology. Geography, Anthropology, Sociology, 

Criminology, Economics, Political Science
03.	 MA in History, Archeology. Geography, Anthropology, Sociology, Criminology, 

Economics, Political Science
04.	 Post Graduate Diploma in Criminology & Criminal Justice
05.	 Post Graduate Diploma in Sociology
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Management & Commerce
01.	 Ph.D in  Management
02.	 Master of Business Administration(MBA)
03.	 Master of Public Management (MPM)
04.	 M.Sc. in Management
05.	 Master of Applied Finance ( MSc AppFin)
06.	 M.Sc/PGD in Real Estate Management & Valuation (REMV)
07.	 Post Graduate Diploma in Marketing Management
08.	 Post Graduate Diploma in Applied Finance (PGDAppFin)
09.	 Post Graduate Diploma in Accounting & Financial Management
10.	 Post Graduate Diploma in Entrepreneurial Business Management
11.	 MSc.In Entrepreneurship

Physical Sciences
01.	 Ph.D. in Mathematics, Physics, Chemistry, Statistics,
02.	 M.Phil. in Mathematics, Physics, Chemistry, Statistics, Computer Sciences, 

Computer System
03.	 M.Sc. in Polymer Sciences & Technology
04.	 Postgraduate Diploma /M.Sc. in Industrial Analytical Chemistry
05.	 M.Sc. in Computer Science 
06.	 Postgraduate Diploma/M.Sc. in Industrial Mathematics
07.	 Postgraduate Diploma/M.Sc. in Applied Statistics
08.	 Postgraduate Diploma/M.Sc. in Physical Education 

Life Sciences
01.	 Ph.D. in Botany, Chemistry, Forestry, Zoology, Food Science, Statistics
02.	 M.Phil.  in Botany,  Chemistry, Forestry, Zoology, Food Science
03.	 M.Sc. Programe in Forestry and Environmental Management
04.	 M.Sc. in Industrial Utilization of Medical and Aromatic Plants
05.	 M.Sc. in Fisheries and Aquatic Resource Management
06.	 M.Sc. in Food Science and Technology
07.	 M.Sc. in Science & Technology of Herbal Products 

Medical Sciences
01.	 Ph.D. in Anatomy, Physiology, Parasitology, Microbiology, Pharmacology, Forensic 

Medicine, Community Medicine, Clinical Medicine, Surgery, Pediatrics, Obstetrics 
and Gynecology, Medical Education and Health, Biochemistry

02.	 M.Phil. in Anatomy, Physiology, Parasitology, Microbiology, Pharmacology, Forensic 
Medicine, Community Medicine, Clinical Medicine, Surgery, Pediatrics, Obstetrics 
and Gynecology, Medical Education and Health, Biochemistry

03.	 Postgraduate Diploma in Evaluation

Multidisciplinary
01.	 Ph.D in Philosophy, Buddhism, History and Management, Valuation, Construction 

& Law, Zoology
02.	 MPhil in Zoology
03.	 GIS & Remote Sensing, Science Administration
04.	 Strategic Sciences & Social Harmony (To be introduced)
05.	 Science Administration (To be introduced)
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The following new developments have been introduced to the Faculty in 2015 with a view to further 
enhance the quality and relevance of postgraduate programs;

•	 Establishment of a Quality Assurance and Accreditation Cell in the  Faculty 
•	 Establishment of a Curriculum Development Committee comprising of members 

from Study Boards

With a view to produce a postgraduate with knowledge, skills and attitudes to contribute effectively 
to the nations development process, a separate program called ‘Graduate Professional Skills’ which 
is  focused on communication, entrepreneurial, leadership, personnel effectiveness, teaching, teaching 
research related to seeking new knowledge and adaption of same for practical use has  been introduced 
by the Faculty.

A University – Industry Hub is being established in the Faculty with the following short term and long 
term objectives;

Identification of industrial research needs (Gap Analysis)

Develop courses to match the above requirement within the National Qualification Framework (NQF)

Create a platform to share and collect knowledge on research needs

Create formalized links with state sector relevant to different disciplines to share findings from the research 
platform in order to address national level/policy level decisions.

Based on the above, following courses have been identified for further development to Postgraduate 
Diploma/Degree levels and will be offered through the Multidisciplinary Study Board.

•	 Corporate  Sustainability
•	 Good Governance
•	 Counseling
•	 Technology

In addition to the above, measures have been taken to introduce on demand postgraduate certificate 
courses which will be tailor made to industry requirements and topical importance. Some of these 
courses will be offered with a on line component to reach a wider audience.

With a view to share knowledge across the disciplines, an international conference on Multidisciplinary 
approaches had been introduced in 2014. This will be further strengthened by the introduction of the 
Research Symposium of the Faculty of Graduate Studies from this year which will be a forum to present, 
debate and share research findings stemming from research in the different disciplines in the Faculty 
and outside. While adding novel knowhow to the national and global knowledge it will sharpen the soft 
skills of the researchers which is a vital aspect.
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DETAILS OF RESOURCES AND STUDENTS IN THE FACULTY OF GRADUATE 
STUDIES 2015

Study Board Program Total students

Humanities Ph.D. in Sinhala 2

Ph.D. in Mass Communication  

Ph.D. in Cultural  Studies 3

Ph.D. in Sanskrit  

Ph.D. in Buddhist civilization 1

Ph.D. in Buddhist Philosophy  

Ph.D. in Philosophy 4

Ph.D. in Pali  

M Phil  in Sinhala 11

M Phil  in Mass Communication 13

M Phil in Cultural studies 15

M Phil in Sanskrit 7

M Phil in Hindi 4

M Phil in Buddhist civilization 8

M Phil in Buddhist Philosophy  

M Phil in Philosophy 12

M Phil in Pali 10

M Phil in English 2

MA  in Sinhala (by Research) 20

MA  in Cultural studies(by Research) 17

MA  in Sanskrit (by Research) 1

MA in Buddhist civilization(by Research) 5

M A in Buddhist Philosophy(by Research) 6

MA  in Philosophy (by Research) 23

MA  in Pali (by Research) 1

MA  in English (by Research) 1

MA in Music (by Research) 2
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MA in Drama & Theatre (by Research) 11

MA in Hindi (by Research) 1

MAT  in Sinhala 6

MAT in Mass Communication  

MAT in Drama & Theater  

MAT  in Cultural studies 1

MA T in Sanskrit  

MAT  in Buddhist civilization  

M AT in Buddhist Philosophy 2

MAT  in Philosophy 1

MAT  in Pali  

Postgraduate Diploma in writership & communication 146

MAQ  in Sinhala 11

MAQ  in Cultural studies 6

MA Q in Sanskrit 1

MAQ in Buddhist civilization 5

M AQ in Buddhist Philosophy 1

MAQ  in Philosophy 17

MAQ  in Pali  

Sub Total 377

Social Sciences Ph.D. in Economics 1

Ph.D. in. History  

Ph.D. in Criminology 2

Ph.D in Archaeology 1

Ph.D. in Anthropology  

Ph.D. in Sociology  

Ph. D. in Geography  

M Phil  in Archaeology 4

M.Phil. in History 8

M.Phil. in Criminology  
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M.Phil. in Political Sciences 3

M.Phil. in Economics 3

M.Phil. in Geography 3

M.Phil. in Anthropology  

M.Phil. in Sociology 10

M.A.T.  in Criminology 57

M.A.R. in Geography 9

M.A.R. in Archaeology 9

M.A.R. in Anthropology 2

M.A.R. in Sociology 21

M.A.R.  in Criminology 15

M.A.R.  in Political Science 3

M.A.R. in History 9

M.A.R. in Economics 5

M.A.T.in  Sociology 26

M.A.T. in History 1

MAQ  in Sociology 22

MAQ in Political Science 6

MAQ in History & Archaeology 4

Post Graduate Diploma in Sociology 7

Post Graduate Diploma in Criminology & Criminal Justice  

Sub Total 231

Management 
Studies & 
Commerce

Ph.D. Management 40

MBA/MPM/M.Sc in Management Program 504

M.Sc. in Real Estate & Valuation 16

Post graduate Diploma in Applied Finance 84

Post Graduate Diploma/M.Sc.  in  Entrepreneurial Business 
Management

47

Post Graduate Diploma in Marketing Management 124

Sub Total 815
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Physical Sciences Ph.D. in Chemistry 8

Ph.D. in Polymer Science 1

Ph.D. in Physics 1

Ph.D. in Statistics 1

Ph.D. in Computer Science 2

M.Phil. in Physics 1

M.Phil. in Mathematical Physics 2

M.Phil. in Mathematical 1

M.Phil. in Chemistry 5

M.Phil. in Computer Science 6

M.Phil. in Computer Information System 1

M.Phil. in Statistics 2

M.Sc. in Polymer  Sciences & Technology  

M.Sc./PGD in Applied Statistics 14

M.Sc./PGD in Industrial Mathematics 38

M.Sc./PGD in Physical Education 8

M.Sc. in Computer Science 60

M.Sc. in Polymer Science & Technology 25

PGD/M.Sc. in Industrial Analytical Chemistry 77

Sub Total 253

Life Sciences Ph.D. in Botany 2

Ph.D. in Forestry  

Ph.D. in Food Sciences 7

Ph.D. in Zoology 3

Ph.D. in Forestry & Environmental  Management 5

M.Phil. in Forestry  

M.Phil. in Botany 5

M.Phil. in Zoology 7

M.Phil. in Food Sciences 9

M.Phil. in Forestry & Environmental  Management 2
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M.Sc. in Food Sciences 83

M.Sc. in Forestry & Environmental  Management 73

M.Sc. in Indus trial Utilization & Aromatic Plants 11

M.Sc. in Fisheries & Aquatic Resource Management 7

MSc in Science & Technology of Herbal Products 12

Sub Total 226

Medical Sciences Ph.D. in Biochemistry 1

Ph. D.  in Medical Education & Health Sciences 4

Ph.D. in Forensic Medicine 1

PhD in Physiology 1

M.Phil. in Paediatrics 1

M.Phil. in Medical Education & Health Sciences 2

M.Phil. in Community Medicine 3

M.Phil. in Microbiology 6

M.Phil. in Pharmacology 2

M.Phil. in Anatomy 3

M.Phil. in Biochemistry 11

M.Phil. in Physiology 4

Sub Total 39

Multidisciplinary Ph.D. in Multidisciplinary 7

M.Phil in Multidisciplinary 3

M.Sc. in Geographical Information System & Remote Sensing 74

Sub Total 84

Total 2025
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STUDENT AFFAIRS AND STUDENT WELFARE 
MATTERS

REGISTRATION OF STUDENTS

Information relating to the commencement and termination of 2013/2014 academic year batch are as 
follows.

Faculty 2013/2014
Date of Commencement 

of academic year 
Date of Termination of 

academic year

Faculty of Humanities and 
Social Sciences

846 09.02.2015 26.02.2016

Faculty of Applied Science 642 27.01.2015 31.01.2016

Faculty of Management Studies 
and Commerce

1245 19.01.2015 15.11.2015

Faculty of Medical Sciences 153 24.11.2014 23.11.2015

DETAILS OF STUDENT REGISTRATION

Academic Year
Humanities 
and Social 
Sciences

Applied 
Science

Management
Medical 
Sciences

Total

2007/2008 675 358 1084 226 2343

2008/2009 600 452 1094 246 2392

2009/2010 674 465 1166 228 2533

2010/2011 683 631 1199 225 2738

2011/2012 998 664 1409 180 3251

2012/2013 838 646 1280 151 2915

2013/2014 846 642 1245 153 2886
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MAHAPOLA SCHOLARSHIPS

List of students who received Mahapola scholarships in 2015 under different faculties are shown below.

Rs.2550/= is paid for Merit Scholarships and Rs.2500/= for Ordinary Scholarships Mahapola scholarships 
of which Rs.350/= and 2450/= is paid out of  University funds.

Academic 
Year

Humanities 
and Social 
Sciences

Management
Medical 
Sciences

Applied 
Science

Amount spent for the 
year (Rupees)

2009/2010 - - 57 -  2,242,600.00

2010/2011 392 890 96 100  61,704,100.00

2011/2012 450 986 108 229 16,893,045.00

2012/2013 602 984 97 236 118,414,079.00

Total 1444 2860 358 565 199,253,824.00

BURSARIES

Payment of Bursaries during the year is shown below (by Academic Year and Faculties) 2015

Academic 
Year

Humanities 
and Social 
Sciences

Management
Medical 
Sciences

Applied 
Science

Amount spent for the 
year (Rupees)

2009/2010   9  182,100.00 

2010/2011 68 87 8 30 4,331,300.00 

2011/2012 342 126 12 61 12,554,200.00 

2012/2013 79 33 6 80 6,112,300.00 

Total 489 246 35 171 23,179,900.00 

Advance Payments

2013/2014 612 827 83 269 23,881,900.00
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EXAMINATION DIVISION

Examinations

Relevant work pertaining to the printing & packeting of question papers and handing over them to 
the supervisors for the Faculties of Humanities and Social Sciences, Applied Sciences and Management 
Studies and Commerce were carried out by the Examinations Division with regard to the semester 
examinations held during January, February, June, July, August and September 2015. Handing over of 
Answer scripts to the Examiners was also carried out by the Examinations Division for the Faculty of 
Management Studies & Commerce and the Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences. Typing of question 
papers for the Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences was also carried out by the Examinations 
Division. Pass lists of the Faculty of Applied Sciences were prepared and sent for the approval of the 
University Senate by the Examinations Division.

Conducting the Examination Offences Investigation Committee & the Appeals Committee ( 02 sub 
committees appointed by the University Senate) and sending its recommendations to the Senate and 
implementation of relevant decisions regarding  the  offences made by the students of the Faculties 
of Humanities and Social Sciences, Applied Sciences, Management Studies & Commerce, Medical 
Sciences and Diploma examinations of Criminology and  Mass Communication were carried out by the 
Examinations Division. 

Work relevant to the examination payment vouchers of the academic staff of the Faculty of Applied 
Sciences and Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences and that of non academic staff of the Faculty of 
Applied Sciences were carried out by the Examinations Division. 

Convocation 

Lists of graduands of the Faculties of Humanities and Social Sciences, Applied Sciences and Management 
Studies and Commerce were prepared and sent for the approval of the University Senate and the 
Council by the Examinations Division. Arrangements were made to publish the paper advertisement 
for the convocation held on 28th & 29th of July 2015 and issuing of convocation applications to all the 
graduands of the above three Faculties. Work regarding the printing, writing and issuing of the original 
degree certificates at the convocation itself were also carried out by the Examinations Division.

Issuing & Verification of Certificates  

Certificates and Transcripts of graduates of the faculties of Faculties of Humanities and Social Sciences, 
Applied Sciences and Management Studies and Commerce to foreign and local universities and relevant 
institutions on request  were issued by the Examinations Division.  Verification of the same for foreign 
and local institutions and submission of the information of graduates and examination data to the 
University Grant Commission and other relevant authorities when and where necessary were also carried 
out by the Examinations Division.
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Medical treatments and tests for Students and staff, and the Dental services mainly done by the University 
medical Centre. In addition Anti Dengue Campaigns, Spraying pesticides to control pests, Food testing 
programmes in University Hostels and Canteens, Counseling for the students and staff of the university, 
awareness programmes for the students on health and social issues, water sample testing were rendered 
by the medical Centre.

During the year 2015 Dr. Shantha hettiarachchi served as Chief Medical Officer, Dr. (Mrs.) S. De Silva, 
Dr. Mrs. D.L.M.R.H. Perera served as Medical officers and Dr. D.P.D. Asalage served as Dental Surgeon.

PHYSICAL EDUCATION DIVISION

Introduction
The formulation & implementation of sport activities for University students, training of sportsmen 
and sports women for 38 sport events and the organization of sport events are the main functions of 
the Physical education Division. Inter University tournaments, giving formal training for tournaments 
organized by the National Sports Association or international, the administration and maintenance of 
grounds for different games are the other activities of the Physical Education Department.

The present Acting Director of Physical Education is Mrs, Thamara Kumari Jayasekara. Mr. T.S.A. 
Amarasena, Mrs. N.Nishanthi Vidanage and Mrs. Ramani Kulathilaka serve as permanent sports instructors 
and Mr. Lal Chandrakumara serve as an instructor on contract basic and Mr. M.G.S.S.Keerthirathna 
serve as temporary instructor of Physical Education.

Objectives of the Physical Education Department
1.	 To give an understanding on the values of Physical Education to internal students of the 

University and to give them a physical development through mental development.

2.	 To provide an opportunity for improvement of sports activities and skills.

3.	 To encourage sports participation by playing tournaments, with internal and external sports 
bodies.

4.	 To develop discipline by encouraging sports activities among students.

A Sports Advisory Board consisting of members of the academic and administrative staff. Sports council 
consisting of sports captains have been established for supporting spots activities in the University. Every 
year office bearers will be selected for the sports council.

Sports Advisory Board
The Sports Advisory Board consists of the following members.

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTRE
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1.	 Twelve permanent academic staff members who are   interested in sports appointed by the 
Vice- Chancellor (two members from each faculty)

2.	 Director of Physical Education

3.	 Three  members from the full-time physical education instructors (one should be an 
instructress)

4.	 Two Co-president of the Sports Council, Secretary and Vice-President or another 
representative (One should be a sports women)

5.	 University Chief Medical Officer or his representative (Should be a medical officer of the 
University)

6.	 Director, Student affairs

7.	 The Senior Assistant Registrar (Student Welfare) or his  or her representative

8.	 Bursar or his or her representative

9.	 Works Engineer or his representative 

10.	 Assistant Registrar (Capital Works Division)

11.	 Project Engineer ( Capital Works Division)

Sports Council.
The University Sports Council consists of Captains and Vice Captains of different sports teams. It consists 
of two co-president, Vice-president, Secretary, Assistant secretary, Junior Treasurer, two editors and two 
committee members.

They will be selected at the first meeting of the academic year.

Sports Activities and Tournaments
The following Physical Education Instructors of the Physical Education Division of the University have 
provided facilities and training for the following sports under their supervision:

Mrs. T.K.Jayasekara
(Acting Director of Physical 

Education)

Basketball (female/male)
Netball (female)

Hockey (female/male)
Football (male)

WeightLifting (female/male)

Mr. T.S.A. Amarasena
(Physical Education Instructor)

Mr. Lal Chandrakumara
(Physical Education Instructor)

Athletes (female/male)
Road race (female/male)
Swimming (female/male)

Carrom (male)
Baseball (male)

Mrs. N. Nishanthi Vidanage
(Physical Education Instructor)

Badminton (female/male)
Table Tennis(female/male)

Tennis (female/male)
Rugger (male)

Mrs. J.M. Ramani Kulathilaka
(Physical Education Instructor) 

Volleyball (female/male)
Elle (female/male)

Chess (female/male)
Cricket  (male)

Karate (female/male)

Mr. M.G.S.S. Keerthirathna
(Physical Education Instructor)

Wrestling (male)
Taekwondo(female/male)
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The Physical Education Department organizes the following tournaments.

1.	 Inter Faculty Novices/ Fresher’s Tournaments
2.	 Inter faculty meets
3.	 Invitational & Friendly tournaments
4.	 Inter University Tournaments

In addition, we organize friendly matches with outside teams, inter university championships. Combined 
university Team games are also held.

Also our students participate in Combined University Sport Teams selected from all universities, National 
Championship, World University Games and Championships.

The Inter University Sports Festival organized by a few universities is held every year and the Mini 
Olympics is held every three years, organized by a single university.

Below are the events which we carried out in 2015.

•	 Medical camp at family medicine center organized by Physical education Department to 
check the healthiness of the captains and vice captains of the each teams.

•	 "KARATE CAMP - 2015"
	 was held January 2015 at university premises. Organized by J'Pura Karate family and 

Physical education Department.

•	 Out boundary training at Academy of Adventure Belihuloya in February 6th to 9th 2015 
organized by Physical education Department  to motivate and Develop Leadership Qualities 
of the teams captains and vice captains to ready for the inter university meet.

•	 Inter faculty fresher’s meet held from 13th to 17th march 2015. For The first ye for all 
faculties. 
•	 1st place - Faculty of Applied Science.
•	 2nd Place - Faculty of Management studies and commerce.
•	 3rd place - Faculty of Humanities and social sciences.
•	 4th place - Faculty of Medicine.

•	 Past VS Present exhibition Basketball match was held on 29th May 2015 at University of Sri 
Jayewardenepura.

•	 Inter University Sport Championship Organized by Sri Lanka University Sport Association. 
In this event University of Sri Jayewardenepura became the 1st beating all the other 
universities. This is the first time in History that the University of Sri Jayewardenepura 
has won this. Our university holds the most number of championships in both Men and 
Women category in May 16th to September 2015. These Tournament was held from May 
to September 2015.
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•	 Results Of the Inter University Championships 2015

Sport Men Women

1 Badminton 2nd  Place 2nd Place

2 Base Ball 1st  Place -

3 Basket Ball 3rd Place 1st Place

4 Carom 5th Place 5th Place

5 Chess 3rd Place 4th Place

6 Cricket 3rd  Place -

7 Elle 3rd Place  3rd   Place

8 Football 3rd Place -

9 Hokey 5th place 3rd Place

10 Karate 9th 6th Place

11 Net Ball - 1st Place

12 Road Race 1st Place -

13 Rugby 4th Place -

14 Swimming 1st Place 4th Place

15 Table Tennis 1st  Place 1st Place

16 Taekwondo 3rd Place 6th Place

17 Tennis 3rd  Place 3rd  Place

18 Track & Field 2nd Place 2nd Place

19 Volleyball 5th Place 1st Place

20 Weightlifting 3rd Place -

21 Wrestling 4th Place -

•	 Men Championship - 1st Place 

•	 Women Championship - 1st Place

•	 Overall Championship - 1st Place



University of Sri Jayewardenepura
Annual Report 2015 67

•	 Inter faculty Sports Championship held on 26th to 30th September 2015.

•	 1st place won by the Faculty of Applied Science.
•	 2nd Place won by the Faculty of Management studies and commerce.
•	 3rd place won by Faculty of Medicine.
•	 4th Place won by the Faculty of Humanities and social sciences.

•	 Award Ceremony of the Inter-Faculty Sports Championship organized by the Department of the 
Physical Education was held on 30th September 2015 at University Gymnasium.

•	 University of Sri Jayewardenepura also participated on this invitation Tournaments.
•	 Mora 7 (Rugby , Football , Hockey) Organized by the University of Moratuwa
•	 UMISF Mora (Badminton) Organized by the University of Moratuwa
•	 Gamunu Rathnayaka  Memorial Trophy Organized by the University of Moratuwa
•	 Pera Hockey sixes Championship - 2015 was Held on 15th of February 2015.
•	 Kelaniya Fasters (Badminton)
•	 Inter University Scrabble Tournament 2015, organized by the University of Kelaniya 

was held on 18th of October 2015 at the university premises. 
•	 KDU 7 (Rugby , Cricket, Football ,Hockey, Volleyball)
•	 SITM Flip Turn (Swimming)
•	 SLIIT Castle (Chess)
•	 APIT (Chess)
•	 Colombo ( Chess)

•	 Participation to the World University Games. 13 members are participated to this event,

•	 Swimming – 4
•	 Table Tennis – 2
•	 Tennis – 3
•	 Track and Field – 3
•	 Badminton – 1
•	 Taekwondo – 1
•	 Officials - 3

And this was held in July 3rd to 14th 2015 at Gwangiu, South Korea.
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•	 Participation to the UITM international Sports fiesta. Six team has participated to this event,

•	 Badminton
•	 Basketball (Men and women)
•	 Rugby
•	 Volleyball(Mean and Women)
•	 Officials - 2

	 Malaysia August 26th to 30th 2015.

•	 Participation to the 1st Asian University Chess Championship. 3 Members are participated this 
event and this was held in October 18th to 25th 2015 at Beijing, China.

•	 "KARATE TRAINING CAMP - 2015"

was held on 23rd of October 2015 at university premises. Organized by J'Pura Karate family and 
Department of Physical Education

Runner-up in the Invitation Tournament
Hockey (Women team) became runner-up in the PERA Sixes Hockey Tournament Organized by the 
Peradeniya University.

Elle (Women team) became runner-up in the triangular Elle Tournament Organized by the Moratuwa 
University.

2nd Runner-up in the Invitation Tournament
01.	 Taekwondo (Men team) became 2nd runner-up in the WARRIORS Invitational 

Taekwondo Team Championship Organized by the University of kelaniya.
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Championship in the Invitation Tournament
01.	 Cricket Team Became Champion in LEADERS TROPHY Tournament Organized by the 

Kotalavala Defense University.

02.	 Football Team Became Champion in LEADERS TROPHY Tournament Organized by the 
Kotalavala Defense University.

03.	 Basketball (men) Team Became Champion in the Invitation Basketball Tournament    
Organized by the University of Moratuwa on 04th, 05th and 07th July 2014.

04.	 Powerlifting (Women) Team Became Champion in National Shakthi Powerlifting 
Championship Organized by the Shakthi Powerlifting Sports Club

Colours Award
At the end of each year. A Colours Award Ceremony will be organized by the Physical Education 
Department and the Sports Council. Sportsmen and Sportswomen who reached the required standard 
under the approved criteria will be awarded Colours with the approval of the Advisory Board. The 
criteria for these awards and further details can be obtained from the Physical Education Department. 
In addition, the sportsmen and women who perform well at the Inter University   tournaments will be 
given the Merit Award of Sri lankan Universities Sports Association. Colurs Award ceremony (Japura 
Warna 2014). was held at Galadhari Hotel Colombo in May 05th 2015.

Sports Facilities
The Department of Physical Education, the governing body of sports, of the prestigious University of Sri 
Jayewardenepura possesses unique sporting facilities.

Out-door Volleyball Courts
The University outdoor volleyball courts are located near the swimming pool have two clay based 
courts. These are available for university students and staff members.
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Basketball Court
The Outdoor basketball court is situated next to the volleyball courts and is mainly a hard court made 
of tar. These are available for university students and staff members.

Tennis Courts
Tennis courts are clay surfaced and well maintained. These are available for university students, staff 
members, and for outsiders as well.

Swimming Pool Complex
The Swimming pool is a 50m standard size & has 10 lanes. Its shallow end is 1.5 m in depth and at the 
deep end, the depth is 5.5 m. The swimming pool has an adjacent two storied- building which consists 
of changing rooms and wash-rooms for swimmers. The pool is available for university students, staff 
members, and for outsiders as well upon request.
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Cricket Ground
The University cricket pitch is mainly a grass surfaced 65m full length area. This well maintained ground 
has one matting pitch & two clay pitches. The ground has an adjacent one storied- pavilion & changing 
rooms with attached wash-rooms for players & referees. This ground is located in a very picturesque 
environment. The pitch hosts Inter University matches, University intra-mural competitions, and as well 
as other community club tournaments.



University of Sri Jayewardenepura
Annual Report 201572

STAFF DEVELOPMENT CENTER

The Staff Development Centre has conducted the following Programmes for Academic and Non Academic 
Staff during the year 2015. Dr.R.B. Marasinghe continued to be the Director/Staff Development Centre, 
on part time basis.  

List of the Programme conducted during the Year – 2015 - under the Staff Development Centre

No. Programme Date Title Target Group

1. Guest Lecture 28.01.2015

Research Opportunities in 
the Field of Sustainability 
to Aim for International 
Publications

The Staff of the University of 
Sri Jayewardenepura

2.
Full day 

Workshop 
12.02.2015

Responsibility and 
Accountability

 Non Academic Staff 
of the University of Sri 
Jayewardenepura 

3
Full day 

Workshop
19.02.2015

Responsibility and 
Accountability

Administrative Staff of 
the University of Sri 
Jayewardenepura

4.
Full day 

Workshop
26.02.2015

Responsibility and 
Accountability

Academic Staff of 
the University of Sri 
Jayewardenepura 

5.
Out Bound 
Programme

04.04.2015
Positive attitudes for better 
performance

Library  Staff of The 
University of Sri 
Jayewardenepura At Palm 
Village Hotel Uswetakeiyawa

6.
Out Bound 
Programme 

09.05.2015
Team building and 
developing positive 
attitudes

Non Academic Staff of the 
Faculty of Medical Sciences 
At the Wijaya Resort .Kiriella  

7. Work Shop 

13.05.2015 

20.05.2015

12.08.2015

14.10.2015

Upgrading the University  
Web Ranking 

“How to incorporate 
Google Scholar into your 
research”

For Academic Staff of the 
Medical Faculty, 

For Academic Staff of the 
Management Studies and 
Commerce, 

For  Academic Staff Applied 
Sciences and 

For Academic Staff of the   
Humanities and Social 
Sciences University of Sri 
Jayewardenepura 
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8.
06 Months 

Course

24.04.2015
08.05.2015
22.05.2015
12.06.2015
19.06.2015
03.07.2015
17.07.2015
07.08.2015
21.08.2015
04.09.2015
18.09.2015
24.09.2015
25.09.2015
02.10.2015 
16.10.2015
30.10.2015
13.11.2015

Certificate Course in 
Teaching in Higher 
Education (CTHE) – 2015

Probationary Assistant 
Lecturers and Senior 
Lecturers

9.
Out Bound 
Programme

21.06.2015
Positive attitudes for better 
performance    

Finance officers, Non 
Academic Staff of the finance 
Branches of all the faculties, 
the main finance Section 
and supplies Division at 
the Hibiscus Beach Hotel 
,Kalutara.  

10.
Out Bound 
Programme

06.07.2015
Positive attitudes for better 
performance

Administrative Staff and Non 
Academic Staff of Faculty 
of Applied Sciences at Aqua 
Pearl Hotel.Moratuwa

11
Out Bound 
Programme

11.07.2015
Positive attitudes for better 
performance

Administrative Staff and 
Non Academic Staff of  
Administrative Building At 
the Hibiscus Beach Hotel, 
Kalutara  

12.
Out Bound 
Programme

10.08.2015
Positive attitudes for better 
performance

Administrative Staff and Non 
Academic Staff of the Faculty 
of Management Studies and 
Commerce of the USJP at 
Belihuloya
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13.
Toast masters 

Community Club

28.01.2015
18.02.2015
25.02.2015
11.03.2015
25.03.2015
08.04.2015
22.04.2015
13.05.2015
27.05.2015
05.06.2015
10.06.2015
24.06.2015
08.07.2015
22.07.2015
12.08.2015
21.08.2015
26.08.2015
09.09.2015
23.09.2015
30.09.2015
07.10.2015
14.10.2015
28.10.2015
11.11.2015
24.11.2015
09.12.2015
16.12.2015

Community Club Meetings 

For the Academic Staff 
of the University of Sri 
Jayewardenepura and out 
comers of other Institutes 

14.
Out Bound 
Programme

20.08.2015
Positive attitudes for better 
performance

Non Academic Staff of the 
Maintenance Division At 
the Hibiscus Beach Hotel, 
Kalutara  

15.
Out Bound 
Programme

21.08.2015
Positive attitudes for better 
performance

Part of Non Academic 
Staff of  Maintenance 
Division,Sucurity officers 
and Marshals of the USJP at 
the Hibiscus Beach Hotel, 
Kalutara  

16. Workshop 02.09.2015

Regarding Maintenance of 
Personal Files, Release of 
Gratuity and UPF,Howthe 
payments should be made 
without any delay and 
Agreements ,Bond and 
the actions to be taken for 
bond Violation

For the Non Academic 
Staff of the Academic 
Establishment, Non 
Academic Establishment, 
internal Audit Division, 
Main Finance Division and 
medical Finance Section

17.
Out Bound 

Training 
Programme 

24th  and 
25th  Sep 

2015
Belihuloya For CTHE members in 2015
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18.
Out Bound 

Training 
Programme

29.09.2015
Out Bound Training 
Programme on “Better 
Networking”

For the All Heads of the 
all Departments in USJP at 
Berjaya Hotel Colombo.

19. Workshop 29.10.2015

“How to maintain 
and Update Sectional 
Inventories and How to 
Conduct an Annual Board 
of Survey and How it 
should be compared with 
Fix Assets Register” 

for all Administrative Staff 
and Non Academic Staff of 
Sri Jayewardenepura.

20. Workshop 18.11.2015
“Journal Writing and 
Publishing ”

For Academic Staff of 
the University of Sri 
Jayewardenepura

21.
Tamil Training 

Programme

17.11.2015
02.12.2015
09.12.2015
16.12.2015
23.12.2015
30.12.2015

Tamil Language Training  
Programme

For Administrative Staff 
of the University of Sri 
Jayewardenepura

22.
Out Bound 

Training 
Programme 

19.11.2015
Positive attitudes for better 
performance

For Administrative Staff and 
Non Academic Staff of the 
Faculty of Humanities and 
Social Sciences, External 
Examinations and Health 
Centre   

23.
Out Bound 

Training 
Programme 

30.11.2015
Positive attitudes for better 
performance

For the Non Academic 
Staff of the FAS, Student 
Welfare, Physical Education, 
Proctors Office, Main 
Computer Centre, Security 
Section Marshals, Faculty of 
Engineering & Technology 
and FGS 

24.
Out Bound 

Training 
Programme

18.12.2015
Positive attitudes for better 
performance

For the Staff of the Welfare 
Division at Madu Ganga 
Capton Boat House 

25. Workshop 29.12.2015
Preparation of Corporate 
Plan 2016- 2020 

For the Administrative Staff 
of the University of Sri 
Jayewardenepura
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EXTERNAL DEGREES & EXTENSION COURSES 
UNIT

External Examination division of the University of Sri Jayewardenepura commenced in 1979 with the 
commencement of the External Degree Programme in Bachelor of Commerce. Subsequently Bachelor 
of Arts General External Degree Programme was commented. In 1997 the External Degree programmes 
of  B.Sc in Business Administration and Public Administration also introduced. The B.A General Degree 
and the B.Sc Business Administration External Degree Programmes have become very popular among 
the students. 

According to the circular No 932 dated 15th October 2010 issued by the University Grants Commission, 
the external examinations unit has been structurally changed as External Degrees & Extension courses 
unit.

The Composition of the Management Committee of the External Degrees & Extension Courses Unit is 
as follows.

(i)  	 Vice Chancellor of the University (Chairperson)

(ii)  	 Nominee from the UGC

(iii)  	 Two members appointed by the Council from among the UGC appointed members

(iv)  	 Deans of Faculties (Deans of Faculties, Humanities & Social Sciences and Management 
Studies & Commerce

(v)    	 Chairpersons of Boards of Study

(vi)   	 Registrar

(vii)  	 Bursar

(viii)  Director of EDECU

(ix)  	 SAR/ EDECU

(x) 	  SAB/ EDECU

The External Degrees & Extension courses unit introduced to conduct following degree programmes 
under the new reforms from year 2014. 

Faculty of Humanities & Social Sciences
•	 Bachelor of Humanities and Social Sciences (General) External Degree 
•	 Bachelor of Arts in English (General) External Degree
•	 Bachelor of Social Sciences (General) External Degree in Environmental & Development  

Studies

Faculty of Management Studies
•	 B.Sc Business Administration (General) External Degree
•	 B.Sc Management (Public) General (External) Degree
•	 Bachelor of Commerce (General) External Degree
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11th External Degree Convocation was held at Bandaranayke Memorial International Hall at 13,14 July 
2015.

The number of external candidates who completed the degrees in year 2015, qualified to award degrees 
as follows.

Degree No of Graduates

 B.A General Degree 1516

B.Sc Business Administration 1878

B.Sc Public Management 74

B.Com (General) 230.
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LIBRARY

Under the direction of the Librarian Dr. Nayana Wijayasundara, 01 Deputy Librarian, 05 Senior Assistant 
Librarians, 02 Assistant Librarians (from 14.12.2015), 01 Assistant Registrar (Library Services), 01 
Assistant Network Manager and 52 non-academic staff were carried out duties in the library.

During the year, 1190 books were purchased at a cost of Rs. 3,362,835.83 from the annual allocation 
and 62 foreign and local periodicals were purchased at a cost of Rs. 6,559,871.43. Two electronic 
databases JSTOR (at a cost of Rs. 854,872.82) and Research4life (at a cost of Rs. 132,143.40) were 
purchased. 1018 books (valued at Rs. 2,842,075.04) and 50 periodicals were received as donation and 
15 periodicals on exchange basis.

In addition, access to 05 other electronic databases; Emerald, Taylor & Francis, Wiley Online, SAGE 
Research Methods, Oxford Journals, was provided to patrons through the UGC consortium, CONSAL.

During the year 2015, 2525 books were processed by the Processing Division and the amount consisted 
of 95 Ceylon Room (CR), 119 Permanent Reference (PR), 294 Scheduled Reference (SR) and 2017 
Lending (L) books.

About 3,110 readers were registered including Academic Staff (53), Non-academic staff (39), 
Undergraduate students (2,700) and Diploma & Postgraduate students (318) during the year 2015. 
With that the total number of registered users was increased to 17,181.

The rate of fulfillment of Inter-library loan requests was 91.32%.

15 workshops were conducted by the library for the staff (05) and students (10) in order to enhance the 
awareness of information resources and information literacy skills.

During the year 2015, 02 PhD, 01 MSSc., 01 PG diploma, 02 degree and 03 diploma studies were 
carrying out by the library staff.
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INTERNAL  AUDIT  DIVISION

STRUCTURE & FUNCTIONS OF THE INTERNAL AUDIT DIVISION.
Internal Audit Division is headed by the Deputy Internal Auditor. Audit program for the year is prepared 
and submitted to the University Council for its approval with recommendation of the Audit and 
Management Committee.

AUDIT & MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MEETINGS
The Audit and Management committee appointed by and responsible to the Council Comprises of three 
Independent Non Executive direction members of Council.

It was headed by the Chairman who was the Council member of the University in the Non Executive 
capacity and consisted of two other Council members in the Non Executive capacity. In the year 2015 
committee had met 5 (Five) times and discussed following important areas;

a) 	 Reviewing the existing systems, procedures and any deviations. Submitted suggestions 
to the Councils for its approval to improve the existing systems.

b) 	 Reviewing the queries raised by the Auditor General and the answers given by the 
relevant head of the Department. Matters were discussed with relevant head of the Dept. 
in order to ensure correct implementation and avoid   repetition of such errors.

c)	 Internal Audit reports are reviewed and discussed with management with view to further 
strengthening the Internal Control environment within the university.

PRE AUDITING
Pre audit was carried out in the following areas in order to ensure the accuracy of payments.

•	 Release of Provident Fund

•	 Payment of Gratuity

•	 Application  for the Payment of Pension

•	 Payment for Construction

•	 Accuracy of Calculation of Bond Value

•	 Payment  on Contractual Agreements

INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS
Following internal audit reports had been issued to the Vice Chancellor with copies to the Internal 
Auditor of the University Grants Commission and Auditor General.

•	 Physical Verification (Random) of Stocks  at Main Stores

•	 Physical Verification of Inventory  at Computer Center

•	 Physical Verification of Inventory  at Multi Media Center
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•	 Physical Verification (Random) of Stocks  at Physical Education Department

•	 Checked the Inventory, Running Chart and Vehicle Maintain Records at General 
Administration.

•	 Checked the Security System, Caretakers and Cleaning At Students Hostels 

•	 Internal Audit Report  related to PIM Affairs  (2015)

•	 Report on Petty Cash Imprests.
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CAPITAL WORKS & REHABILITATION PROJECT 
2015

No. Project Name Start Date
Completion 

Date
Cost Rs. Remarks

1.
Renovation of Main Library 
Building  

12.10.2015 10.03.2016 12.8million Completed

2.
Total Roof Repair and essential 
renovations to Chemistry 
Department building

16.06.2015 14.10.2015 7.7 Million Completed

3.

Painting of internal and external 
walls of stage II buildings for the 
Faculty of Management Studies & 
Commerce

13.08.2015 11.11.2015 3.5 Million Completed

4.

Proposed improvements to 
Laboratories accommodation 
facilities at the Mathematics 
Department – Faculty of Applied 
Sciences

28.07.2015 11.09.2015 0.6 Million Completed

5.
Extension of Roof and provision 
of rainwater disposal system at IT 
resources Centre

21.05.2015 22.06.2015 0.45 Million Completed

6.
Proposed boundary wall, main gate 
& security house at girl’s hostel 
premises

13.08.2015 11.11.2015 2.9 Million Completed

7.

Extension to existing to aluminium 
partitioning at first floor – Faculty 
of Management Studies & 
Commerce

28.07.2015 26.09.2015 0.72 Million Completed

8.
Supply and Fixing of Iron Grilles 
to Window Frames of the Stores- 
FMSC

27.08.2015 28.09.2015 36,400.00 Completed

9.

Extension to existing to aluminium 
partitioning at second floor – 
Faculty of Management Studies & 
Commerce

28.07.2015 26.09.2015 1.1 Million Completed

11.
Proposed renovation of 
Bandaranayake Hall

23.03.2016 27.06.2016 7.7 Million Completed



University of Sri Jayewardenepura
Annual Report 201582

12.
Relocation of Planning & Capital 
Works Division

24.09.2015 23.11.2015 0.37 Million Completed

13.
Fixing of iron grilles to RAA Perera 
Hall 

27.08.2015 27.09.2015 .036 Million Completed

14.
Construction of Bo Tree surround 
Bodhi Gharaya

18.02.2016 03.04.2016 1.6 Million Completed

15. Renovation of Main Security Office 14.01.2016 28.02.2016 1.1 Million Completed

16.

Carpeting the floor area of the 
Information Technology Resource 
Centre ITRC of the  Faculty of 
Management Studies & Commerce

07.12.2015 07.01.2016 0.2 Million Completed

17.

Supply and fixing of new 
roof covering, roof repairs 
and suspended ceiling to 
Bandaranayake Hall

21.07.2016 04.10.2016 10.4 Million Completed

18.
Repairs and colour washing of 
Sumangala building, externally

01.01.2016 01.03.2016 3.8 Million Completed

19.

Proposed renovation of S4A and 
S4B halls Dept. of Political Science, 
Faculty of Humanities and Social 
Sciences

03.05.2016 03.08.2016 4.6 Million Completed

20.

Renovation of Department of 
Sociology and Anthropology, 
Faculty of Humanities & Social 
Sciences

12.05.2016 11.08.2016 1.6 Million Completed

21. Renovation of Proctors Office 16.02.2016 01.04.2016 0.52 Million Completed
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TOWNSHIP PROJECT 2015

No

Name of the Project

Type of the Project (annual Prog./ 
Project)

Location

TEC (Rs. Mn)

Expected Outputs

Project Period (From-To)

Source of Financing **

2015 Allocation

Imprest Received 2015

Expenditure January - December 
2015

Cumulative Expenditure

Measuring Unit

Target 2015 (%)

Achievement 2015 (%)

Cumulative (%)

Issues/Remarks

Implementing Agency
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DETAILS OF ACADEMIC, ADMINISTRATIVE, ACADEMIC SUPPORTING STAFF 
AND NON ACADEMIC STAFF DURING THE YEAR

DETAILS OF ACADEMIC, ADMINISTRATIVE, OTHER EXECUTIVE & ACADEMIC 
SUPPORT STAFF

Approved 
Cadre

Actual Cadre (As at 31-12-
2015)

Vacancies

Permanent
Contract/ 

Temporary

Academic Staff

Senior Professor  9   

Professor (On Chair) 48 59  40

Professor (On Merit)    

Associate Professor 10 17  54

Assoicate Professor (On Merit)   

Senior Lecturer Gr.I 576 117  

Senior Lecturer Gr.II           197  

Senior Lecturer (On Contract)  1

Lecturer 23  

Lecturer (Probationary) 117  

Temporary Lecturer 30  28 2

Temporary Tutor/Demonstrator/Instructor 180  234 *

Registrar 1 1   

Bursar 1 1   

Acting Bursar   1  

Deputy Registrar 4 4   

Deputy Bursar 2 2   

Deputy Internal Auditor 1 1   
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Senior Assistant Registrar
13

Assistant Registrar

Senior Assistant Registrar/Legal Affairs 1

Senior Assistant Registrar/Library Services
1

Assistant Registrar/ Library Services

Senior Assistant Bursar
10

6

Assistant Bursar 4

Administrative Staff sub total 34 32  2

Other Executive Staff     

Director / Physical Education 1 0  1

IT Manager 1 0  1

Project Manager 1 0  1

Chief Marshal 1 0  1

Chief Security Officer 1 1   

Works Engineer - Grade III 1 0   

Works Engineer - Grade II 1  

Workshop Engineer - Grade III 1 0  1

Museum Curator 2 1  1

Statistical Officer 1 0  1

Personal Secretary 1  1  

Other Executive Staff sub total  11 3 1 7

Medical Officers     

Chief Medical Officer 1  1  

Senior Medical Officer 1    

Medical Officer 2 2 1  

Dental Surgeon 1 1   

Medical Officers sub total 5 3 2 0
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Academic Support     

Instructor (Computer Technology) - 
Grade I

27

6  

10
Instructor (Computer Technology) - 
Grade II

7  

Temporary Instructor (Computer 
Technology)

 4

Instructor in Social Work 1 1   

Assistant Statistician - Grade II 1 1   

Assistant Network Manager 2 2   

Career Advisor 1 2   

Programmer cum Systems Analyst - 
Grade II

1 1   

Senior Instructor in English 1 1   

Instructor in English 18 1  17

Instructor in Physical Education - Grade I
5

3 1

Instructor in Physical Education - Grade II 1  

Temporary Instructor in Swimming   1  

Computer Programmer
9

2  
5

Temporary Computer Programmer  2

Scientific Assistant Grade II 8 4  4

Systems Operator/Statistician 1 0  1

Academic Support Staff sub total 75 32 8 37

Total 992 618 278 152

Note:

*	 Actual Cadre is higher than the approved cadre since some temporary instructors/Demonstrators 
were appointed using the provisions available for vacant academic posts.
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DETAILS OF NON ACADEMIC STAFF

Post
Approved 

Cadre 

Actual Cadre (As at 31-
12-2015)

Vacancies

Permanent
Assignment/ 

Contract

1 Book Keeper 5 5  0

2 Clerk 

210

104 7

33 Clerk / Computer Operator

4 Computer Application Assistant 96

5 Data Entry Operator 1 0  1

6 Deputy Chief Security Officer 1 0  1

7 Graduate Translator 1 1   

8 Library Assistant 29 25 3 1

9 Marshal 8 4  4

10 Security Inspector 1 1   

11 Shroff 2 2   

12 Stenographer 28 19  9

13 Store Keeper 5 3 2  

14 Sub Warden ( Full Time ) 9 9   

15 Supply Officer 1 1   

16 Telephone Operator cum Receptionist 3 3   

17 Typist 15 6  9

18 Work Superintendent 3 2  1

19 Works Supervisor 8 4  4

20 Audio Visual Technical Officer 2 0  2

21 Dental Nurse 1 1   

22 Draughtsman 1  1  

23 Glass Blower Technical Officer 1 0  1

24 Landscape Superintendent 1 1   

25 Nurse 6 5 1  

26 Pharmacist 4 4   

27 Public Health Inspector 2 0 2  

28 Technical Officer  103 93 1 9

29 Attendant Health Service 1 1   

30 Book Binder 2 2   



University of Sri Jayewardenepura
Annual Report 201588

31 Carpenter 5 5   

32 Cycle Orderly 1 1   

33 Driver 29 28 1  

34 Electrician 5 5   

35 Gardner 1 1   

36 Gas Plant Operator 1 0  1

37 Groundsman 1 1   

38 Health Service Labourer 17 17   

39 Lab Attendant 75 70  5

40 Care Taker 196 1  
7

41 Labourer 170 18

42 Library Attendant 12 8  4

43 Lorry Cleaner 2 2   

44 Lowan Mower Operator 2 0  2

45 Mason 5 5   

46 Mechanic 1 0  1

47 Office Machine Operator 8 8   

48 Painter 2 1  1

49 Plumber 3 2  1

50 Polisher 2 2   

51 Post-mortem Labourer 2 1  1

52 Pump Operator 2 2   

53 Security Guard 25 18 2 5

54 Specimen Collector 1 0  1

55 Storeman 1 0  1

56 Swimming Pool Attendent 2 2   

57 Three Wheel Driver 2 1  1

58 Tinker Instead Welder 1 1   

59 Tractor Operator 2 2   

60 Two Wheel Tractor Operator 1 1   

Grade Total 861 747 38 76
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FUTURE PLAN

Corporate plan (2016-2020)
1.	 Learning &  Education

2.	 Research & Development:

	 Research, Creativity, Innovation Publication & Public Engagement

3.	 People: Faculty & Staff

4.	 Infrastructure: Organizational structures, Resource Administration  & Development 
(Image Building  & Promotion also)

5.	 Finance

6.	 Lifelong Community, Social Responsibility & National Contribution

7.	 Lifelong community & social responsibility
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT
2015
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Details of Recurrent Expenditure 2015

Subject 2015 (Rs'000)

Personnel Emoluments 1,938,192

Travelling 27,594

Supplies 95,291

Maintenance Expenditure 96,239

Contractual Services 280,647

Other 363,931

Capital Grant - Recurrent nature expenditure 62,115

Total 2,864,009

Financial Performance Analysis - Cost per Student Faculty wise 2015 
(Undergraduate Internal Students)

Faculty Total 
Expenditure (Rs)

Total No of 
Students 2015

Cost Per Student 
(Rs)

a. Applied Science 589,198 2174 271

b. Humanities & Social Sciences 595,239 3280 181

c. Medical Sciences 534,719 1074 498

d. Management Studies & Commerce 807,158 5040 160

1,938,192

27,594

95,291

96,239

280,647

363,931

62,115
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Details of Capital Expenditure

Subject 2013 2014 2015

a. Acquisition of Assets 139,759 125,066 126,744

b. Acquisition of Building & Structures 99,705 632,188 520,910

c. Library Books 13,963 10,769 14,340

d. Knowledge Enhancement Grant 45,859 123,238 154,973

e. Other (Rehabiliation) 90,759 73,123 70,826

Total 390,045 964,384 887,793

Financial Performance Analysis - 2015

Subject Formula Expenditure Per Student

a. Recurrent Expenditure per 
Student (RE)

RE/No of Students 248

b. Capital Expenditure per 
Student (CE)

CE/No of Students 77

Rs'000

Rs'000

Rs'000

Financial Highlights in The Preceding 05 Years

Subject 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Personnel Emoluments 923,550 1,089,575 1,332,798 1,538,113 1,938,192

Traveling 6,778 11,706 9,708 9,973 27,594

Supplies 55,889 61,401 70,207 80,508 95,291

Maintenance Expenditure 18,906 24,503 83,911 73,135 96,239

Contractual Services 184,833 204,977 252,819 253,417 280,647

Other 91,327 150,539 160,595 285,827 319,590

Research and Development 7,220 11,926 26,101 31,060 44,341

Total 1,288,503 1,554,627 1,940,145 2,278,791 2,864,009
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Financial Highlights in the Preceding 05 Years

Financial Grants Highlights in the Preceding 05 Years

Subject 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Capital Grant 189,000 234,000 454,570 947,550 888,000

Recent Grant 1,109,447 1,297,868 1,541,846 1,856,000 2,360,000

2,500,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

500,000

2011

2011

2013

2013

2012

2012

2014

2014

2015

2015

Subject 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Capital Expenditure 230,831 302,244 390,045 964,384 887,793

Recurrent Expenditure 1,288,503 1,554,628 1,940,145 2,278,791 2,864,009

2,500,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

500,000

Rs'000

Rs'000
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 As at  31st 
December 2015 

 As at  31st 
December 2014 

Restated 

 Rs  Rs 

ASSETS

NON  - CURRENT ASSETS

Property Plant & Equipment  7,028,803,909  6,306,047,202 

Library Books & Cloaks  27,020,309  31,416,018 

Capital Work in Progress  1,029,982,976  423,418,383 

Investments  782,109,805  699,237,839 

Loans to Staff  93,519,970  93,965,216 

 8,961,436,970  7,554,084,658 

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories  46,961,265  53,197,470 

Sundry Debtors & Receivables  126,123,300  159,668,579 

Advances to Staff  549,079  1,650,650 

Advances & Pre Payments  193,977,627  297,171,849 

Cash and Cash Equivalents  79,265,948  49,577,779 

 446,877,219  561,266,327

TOTAL ASSETS  9,408,314,190  8,115,350,985

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 2015
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT  31st DECEMBER 2015
(Figures shown to the nearest Sri Lankan Rupee) 
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 As at  31st 
December 2015 

 As at  31st 
December 2014 

Restated 

 Rs  Rs 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY 

Capital Grant  2,548,440,674  1,964,813,021 

Other Capital Grant  462,751,122  78,465,673 

Gifts & Donations  11,725,578  12,719,554 

Revaluation Surplus  5,123,774,169  4,868,260,447 

Retained Earnings  176,438,930  233,765,075 

 8,323,130,473  7,158,023,770 

RESERVES & RESTRICTED FUNDS

Internally Restricted Net Assets  248,970,429  133,530,065 

Capital Reserve  25,574,237  25,574,237 

Endowment Funds  22,472,737  21,311,104 

Outside Research Grants  49,201,877  49,006,095 

Deferred Income - Extension Programmes  70,499,934  94,615,776 

 416,719,214  324,037,277 

NON- CURRENT LIABILITIES

Provision for Gratuity  370,199,325  343,550,124 

 370,199,325  343,550,124 

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Deposits Refundable  3,540,851  5,156,728 

Accrued Expenses &  Other Payables  294,724,327  284,583,086 

 298,265,179  289,739,814 

TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES  9,408,314,190  8,115,350,985

(Statement of Financial Position continued from page 1)

These Financial statements have been prepared & presented in compliance with Public Sector Accounting 
Standards & Sri Lanka Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri 
Lanka.

Ms.K.S.T.S Jayasuriya 
Acting Bursar

Mr.K.G Britto 
Registrar

 Signed for on behalf of Council

Prof. Sampath Amaratunge
Vice - Chancellor

Mr. T. Dharmaraja
Council Member 
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2015 2014 Restated

Rs. Rs. 

REVENUE

Government  Grant  - Recurrent  2,360,000,000  1,861,284,735 

Government Grant - Capital - Recurrent Nature 
Expenditure

 137,653,668  106,624,790 

Bursaries  47,285,000  50,544,700 

Mahapola Scholarship  250,609,800  151,527,500 

Internal Income  455,103,573  496,238,724 

Amortization of Government Grants & Donations  207,297,551  222,797,564 

TOTAL REVENUE  3,457,949,592  2,889,018,012 

EXPENSES

Personnel Emoluments  1,938,192,545  1,537,506,493 

Traveling Expenses  27,594,310  9,973,228 

Supplies  95,291,333  80,507,791 

Maintenance Expenditure  96,239,948  73,134,336 

Contractual Services  280,647,908  253,417,087 

Other Recurrent Expenses  363,931,389  283,323,047 

Capital Grant - Recurrent Expenditure  62,114,803  40,928,640 

Depreciation  313,926,175  263,085,797 

Bursaries  47,285,000  50,544,700 

Mahapola Scholarship  250,609,800  151,527,500 

TOTAL EXPENSES  3,475,833,211  2,743,948,620 

 

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD  (17,883,619)  145,069,392

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31st DECEMBER 2015
(Figures shown to the nearest Sri Lankan Rupee)
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 As at 31/12/2015 
 As at 31/12/2014 

Restated 

 Rs.  Rs. 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Surplus  / (deficit) from Operating activities  (17,883,619)  145,069,392 

Adjustments 

Depreciation  313,926,175  263,085,797 

Interest From Investments  (48,460,430)  (40,700,998)

Provision for Gratuity  49,703,821  45,514,823 

Amortization of Government Grants & Donations  (207,297,551)  (222,797,564)

Disposals/Demolished Assets  2,015,565  124,572 

Depreciation - Disposals/Demolished Assets  (268,365)  -   

Changes in Equity Statement - Foreign Student Fee  (28,571,443)  -   

 Changes in Equity Statement -Breach of Contracts  (10,871,083)

Government Grant - Rehabilitation Maintenance and 
Knowledge Enhancement Activities 

 (137,653,668)  (106,624,790)

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities before 
Working Capital Changes

 (85,360,598)  83,671,231 

Increase / Decrease in Inventories  6,236,205  (6,006,425)

Increase / Decrease in Sundry Debtors & Receivables  32,387,515  (30,705,366)

Increase / Decrease in Loan & Advances to the Staff  1,546,816  (9,901,947)

Increase / Decrease in Advances & Prepayments  103,194,222  (192,012,325)

Increase / Decrease in Accrued & other Payable 
Expenses

 10,141,241  94,080,793 

Increase / Decrease in  Deposits  Refundable  (1,615,877)  (1,830,540)

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities after 
Working Capital Changes

 66,529,526  (62,704,580)

Gratuity Payment  (23,054,620)  (24,394,739)

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities  43,474,906  (87,099,319)

contd

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR  THE YEAR ENDING 31st DECEMBER 2015
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 As at 31/12/2015 
 As at 31/12/2014  

Restated 

 Rs.  Rs. 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of  Property,  Plant and Equipment  (225,226,998)  (276,590,398)

Interest from Investments  57,289,613  53,315,873 

Capital Work in Progress  (735,987,903)  (377,342,771)

Funds Invested during the Year  (216,075,780)  (293,151,517)

Withdrawal of Investment  133,203,814  -   

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities  (986,797,253)  (893,768,814)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Government Grant - Capital  888,000,000  947,550,000 

Encashment of Performance Bond  4,086,825 

Expenditure made from Endowment Fund  (6,509,787)  (6,774,154)

Specific Reserve  115,440,364  47,813,186 

Research Grant  195,781  4,502,582 

Extension Programmes  (24,115,841)  (5,411,004)

Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities  973,010,517  991,767,433 

Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents  29,688,169  10,899,300 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of period  49,577,779  14,365,043 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of period  79,265,948  25,264,342
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies to the Financial Statements
University of Sri Jayewardenepura

1.	 Reporting Entity

1.1.	 Legal & Domicile Form 
University of Sri Jayewardenepura has been incorporated under the Universities Act No.16 of 1978.  The 
main Administration is located at the Gangodawila, Nugegoda.

1.2.	 Date of Authorization for Issue
The Financial Statements were authorized for issue by the Council on 09th June 2016.

1.3.	 Reporting Period
The Financial period of the University represent from 01st January 2015 to 31st December 2015.

2.	 Basis of Preparation and other Significant Accounting Policies

2.1.	 Basis of measurement
The Financial statements of the University of Sri Jayewardenepura have been prepared under the 
historical cost convention and accrued basis in conformity with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting 
Standards except for following,

Item Basis of Measurement

Property Plant and Equipment Fair Value (revalued amounts)

2.2.1.	 Comparative Information
All accounting policies adopted by the University are applied consistently with those of the previous 
year, where necessary comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to the changes, in presentation 
of current year figures.

2.2.2.	 Statement of Compliance
The Financial Statements of the University have been prepared and presented in accordance with Sri 
Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards (SLPSAS’s).

These Financial Statement comprise the statement of Financial Position, Statement of Financial 
Performance, Statement of Cash flow, Statement of changes in equity & notes to the Financial Statements.
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2.2.3.	 Materiality and Aggregation
Each material class of similar items have presented separately in the financial statements. Items of 
dissimilar nature or function have presented separately unless they are immaterial.

2.2.4.	 Offsetting
Assets and liabilities, and revenue and expenses have not been offset unless required or permitted by a 
SLPSAS.

2.2.5.	 Going concern
The university have made an assessment of the University and it’s ability to continue as a going concern 
and is satisfied that it has the resources to continue in entity for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the 
council is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the university’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. Based on that the financial statements have been prepared on a 
going concern basis.

2.2.6.	 Events  after the Reporting Period
All material events after the reporting date has been considered and where appropriate adjustments or 
disclosure wherever necessary have been made in the Financial Statements.

2.2.7.	 Functional& presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of the University are measured using the currency of the 
primary economic environment in which the University operates (the functional currency). These 
financial statements are prepared and presented in ‘Sri Lankan Rupees’ (Rs.), which is the university ’s 
functional and presentation currency. 

2.2.8.	 Transaction of Foreign Currency
All foreign exchange transactions are converted to Sri Lanka Rupees, which is the reporting currency, at 
the rates of exchange prevailing at the time the transactions were affected. 

2.2.9.	 Rounding
The amounts in financial statements have been rounded-off to the nearest rupee, except otherwise 
indicated as permitted by the Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards.

2.3.	 Property Plant & Equipment 
The University’s Property Plant & Equipment includes Land, Buildings, Laboratory and Teaching 
Equipment, Office Equipment, Furniture & Fittings, Library Books and Periodicals, Motor Vehicles, 
Cloaks, Sport Goods and Other Assets include the items acquired out of government grant, Research 
grants, internally generated funds, and donations.
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a.	 Basis of Recognition

	 Property, Plant and Equipment are recognized if it is probable that future economic 
benefits associate with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be 
reliably measured.

i)	 Initial recognition

	 The cost of an item of Property Plant and equipment is the cash price or its fair 
value at the recognition date.

ii) 	 Subsequent expenditure on existing Property Plant & Equipment

	 Expenditure incurred on tangible fixed assets is charged to the statement of 
Financial Performance in the period it is incurred, unless it meets one of the 
following criteria, in which case it is capitalized and depreciated on the relevant 
basis.

•	 Market value of fixed assets has subsequently increased

•	 Asset capacity increase

•	 Sustainability improvement in the quality of output or reduction in 
operating cost.

•	 Significant extension of the asset life beyond that confirmed by repair 
and maintenance.

iii) 	 Measurement after recognition

	 Cost Model

	 After recognition all the Property Plant and Equipment except the classes of 
Land, Buildings, Motor Vehicles, Laboratory and Teaching Equipment, Sports 
Goods, Other Equipment and Furniture & Fittings are carried at its cost less 
accumulated Depreciation.

	 Revaluation Model

	 After initial recognition below classes of Property Plant and equipment whose fair 
value can be measured reliably has been carried at revalued amounts, being fair 
value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation 
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Land & Buildings, Motor 
Vehicles, Office equipment, Lab & Teaching Equipment, Furniture & Fittings, 
Sports goods, Other Assets.

iv) 	 Library Books & Cloaks

	 Cost of Library books & Cloaks are written off on the straight line basis over a 
period of 5 years.

b) 	 Depreciation

	 Depreciation is recognized in the statement of Financial Performance on the straight – 
Line basis on each component of an item of property, plant and equipment other than 
freehold land.

	 Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use and ceases at the earlier of the 



University of Sri Jayewardenepura
Annual Report 2015 103

date that the asset is classified as held for sale and the date that the asset is de-recognized.

	 The estimated useful life periods are as follows.

Assets Category Estimated useful life period

Buildings 20 years

Furniture & Fittings 10 years

Laboratory and Teaching Equipment 05 years

Office Equipment 05 years

Motor Vehicles 2-5 years

Computer & Accessories 05 years

Sports Goods 05 years

Other Assets (Including Water , Telephone 
& Electricity Scheme)

10 years

c.	 Derecognition

	 The carrying amount of Property Plant and Equipment derecognized at the disposal 
or when no future economic benefits or service potential is expected from its use or 
disposal. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition shall be included in surplus or 
deficit when the item is derecognized.

2.3.1.	 Capital Work- in - Progress
Capital expenses incurred which are not completed as at the reporting date are shown as Capital Work 
- in - Progress, Capital work in progress would be transferred to Property, Plant and Equipment when it 
is available for use.

a)	 Current Assets

	 Current Assets classified in Statement of Financial Position are those which is expected 
to be realised in, or is held for sale or consumption in, the entity’s normal operating 
cycle, held primarily for the purpose of being traded, expected to be realised within 
twelve months after the reporting date or cash or a cash equivalent.

b)	 Inventories

	 Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value, after making due 
allowances for obsolete and slow moving items.  In general, cost is determined on first-
in-first-out (FIFO) basis and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories 
and bringing them to their existing condition and location.

c)	 Advances to Staff  & Receivables

	 Advances to staff and Receivable comprise, Employee Advances, Deposits, Trade 
Receivables.

d)	 Cash & Cash Equivalents 

	 Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash in hand and demand deposits and short 
term highly liquid investments readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject 
to insignificant risk of change in value.For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash & 
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cash equivalent of cash in hand and deposits in banks. Investments with short term 
matured six months less for the date of acquisition are also treated as cash equivalents.  
The cash flow statements are reported based on the indirect method.

2.4.	 Accounting for Government Grant for Capital Expenditure 

2.4.1.	 Capital Grant 
Government Grant for the Capital expenditure has presented in the Financial Statements in accordance 
with the LKAS 20 due to the absence of SLPSAS. According to the accounting standard capital grant has 
recognized as deferred income in the statement of financial position and amortized over the useful life 
of the asset.

2.4.2.	 Contribution to Capital Outlay from Outside Grants
The value of Property Plant & Equipment purchased out of generated funds & various project funds 
were shown as “Contribution to Capital Outlay from outside Grants”

2.4.3.	 Recurrent Grant
Recurrent grants are recognized in the Statement of Financial Performance on cash basis.  Cost of 
rehabilitation of Fixed Assets and Capital Grants for construction and new work recognized either as 
work in progress or Capital Assets where necessary.

2.4.4.	 Internally restricted Net Assets
Internally restricted net assets include funds committed for specific purpose.

Faculty Development Funds represent the cumulative position of Faculties/Departments Funds with net 
unspent balances at the year end.

2.4.5.	 Endowment Fund
Endowments include restricted donations received by the University investment returns generated from 
endowments are used in accordance with the various purpose established by the donors. 

2.5.	 Liabilities and Provisions

2.5.1.	 Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities are stated at their book value.

2.5.2.	 Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the University has present obligations (legal and constructive) as a result 
of a past event, where it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
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2.5.3.	 Provision of Retiring Gratuity
Provision for gratuity has been calculated as per the Gratuity Act.No.12 of 1983 based on the amount 
payable all employees retire on the date of the financial position, subject to the assumption that every 
employee would be entitled to the payment subject to the non-completion of minimum period of service 
required. The benefits plan is funded through annual allocation.

2.6.	 Revenue Recognition

2.6.1.	 Government Grants for Recurrent Expenditure, Student Bursaries and Mahapola 
Revenue recognized on cash basis.

2.6.2.	 Income from Fee Leving courses
Income from fee leving courses are recognized on expenditure based on periodic basis.

2.6.3.	 Finance Income
Interest income is recognized on accrued basis using effective interest rate method according to LKAS 
39 due to the absence of SLPSAS.

2.6.4.	 Expenditure Recognition
Expenses in carrying all activities of the University recognized on an accrued basis and to the charged 
statement of Financial Performance.

2.7.	 Statement of Cash Flows
The cash flow statement has been prepared by using The Indirect Method in accordance with the SLPSAS 
2 whereby gross cash receipts and gross cash payments of operating activities, finance activities and 
investing activities have been recognized. Cash and cash equivalents comprise short term, highly liquid 
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant 
risk of changes in value. 

2.8.	 Commitments and Contingencies
All discernible risks are accounted for in determining the amount of all known liabilities. Contingent 
liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future events or 
present obligations where the transfer of economic benefit is not probable or cannot be reliably measured. 
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the statement of financial position but are disclosed unless 
they are remote.
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AUDITOR GENERAL’S REPORT AND 
ANSWERS TO THE REPORT OF THE 
AUDITOR GENERAL UNIVERSITY OF 
SRI JAYEWARDENEPURA FOR THE 

YEAR ENDED 31.12.2015
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ACTIONS TAKEN IN RESPECT OF THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE 

UNIVERSITY OF SRI JAYEWARDENEPURA 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 

2015 IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
REPORT OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL 

AS PER SECTION 108 (I) OF THE 
UNIVERSITIES  ACT,  NO. 16 OF 1978.
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2.3 Accounts Receivable and Payable

The following observations are made.

(a.) Action had not been taken to settle the 
advances amounting to Rs. 1,310,000 paid to 
the Urban Council,  Maharagama and brought 
forward from the year 1990 even up to the year 
under review. 

In accordance with the decision of the 50th 
session of the Audit and Management Committee 
meeting, action will be taken to settle the advance 
by obtaining a report containing evidence through 
a committee appointed by the Council.

(b.) Out of the advance of Rs.2,268,483 paid to the 
contractor for the renovation of laboratory building 
and the New Art Theater in the year 2011, a sum 
of Rs.1,764,013 remained recoverable in respect 
of the work not done had not been recovered even 
in the year under review. 

Action is taken to take legal action. The Attorney 
General has been requested to take proper 
action. Taking legal action thereon progresses in 
collaboration between the Attorney General and 
the University.

(c.) Out of the advance amounting to Rs. 400,000 
obtained on 20 August 2014 by a lecturer for 
carrying out research study  on the awareness of 
the reproductive health and the spread of sexually 
transmitted diseases among the inmates of the 
Welikada Prison, a sum of Rs.366,720 had not 
been settled even by August 2016 and the relevant 
research as well had not been carried out.

This advance was settled on 2017.01.02

(d.) Advances of Rs. 684,373 older than 10 to 14 
years included in the balance of Rs. 1,141,097 
shown as the Sundry Advances in the financial 
statements as at the end of the year under review 
had not been recovered even in the year under 
review.

All the advances that could be recovered, had 
been recovered in the year 2015. Every action 
required for settling this advance, had been taken 
in the year 2016.

(e.) Out of 14 security bonds debtors totalling Rs. 
93,549,873 as at the end of the year under review, 
a sum of Rs. 16,411,708 remained recoverable for 
more than 15 years had not been recovered even 
in the year under review.

Legal action has been taken against 02 Lecturers 
to recover those monies. As it was not possible 
to find the residences of 04 lecturers and their 
guarantors, the recovery failed, and action is being 
taken to further find information relating thereto. 
A sum of Rs. 6,262.00 remains recoverable from 
another lecturer. However, the Administrative 
Council has been recommended by the Audit 
Committee to write off that sum as it was not 
possible to find his place of residence. Consent of 
some others have been obtained to recover their 
balances from the university provident funds, 
and the University Grants Commission has been 
informed to remit that sums to the University. The 
sum of Rs. 49,754.50 that remained recoverable 
from one of the Lecturers, has been recovered 
by the University. The balances of the other two, 
are being settled by them to the University in 
installments.
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(f.) Out of the 18 quarters owned by the 
University, 16 quarters had been given to the 
officers without entering into agreements and 
out of the house rental amounting to Rs.321,300 
remained receivable for the year under review, a 
sum of Rs.258,300 or 80 per cent had not been 
recovered.

Action has been taken to recover the outstanding 
house rents recoverable for the year 2016, and 
at present, the rent in arrears amounts to Rs. 
189,625.00. It has been decided at the Housing 
Committee Meeting held under the patronage of 
the Vice Chancellor that appropriate action be 
taken with the involvement of the Administrative 
Council in case the tenants still fail to pay the 
rents in arrears after being informed in writing, 
and to renew the rent agreement of the houses. 
Action has been taken accordingly.

2.4 Non-compliances with Laws, Rules, 
Regulations, and Management Decisions 

The following non-compliances with Laws, Rules, 
Regulations and Management Decisions were 
observed.

Reference to Laws, 
Rules, Regulations etc.

(a) Section 3.1 of 
Chapter XX and Section 
1.6.1 of Chapter X of 
the Establishments 
Code of the University 
Grants Commission 
and Higher Education 
Institutions.

(b) Section 2.1 of 
Chapter XXVI of the  
Establishments Code 
of the University 
Grants Commission 
and Higher Education  
Institutions.

(c) Treasury Circular 
No.IAI/2002/02 dated 
28 November 2002.

Non-compliance

Although instructions 
had been given 
to formulate a 
methodology to 
establish the arrival, 
departure and the 
leave of the academic 
staff at the Committee 
on Public Enterprises, 
action had not been 
taken accordingly.

A Board of survey on 
the library books had 
not been conducted 
after the year 2005.

A Register of Fixed 
Assets had not been 
maintained on the 
computers and 
computer accessories 
of the University., 
experience and age 
limits and without 
being published the 
relevant vacancies.

Although the Lecturers do not record their arrival 
and departure daily, they discharge their duties 
in accordance with timetables, and do sign when 
executing the other duties assigned. Hence, the 
Head of the Department inspects those records, 
and recommends paying salaries accordingly. The 
University Grants Commission should take action 
in this regard. 

The survey report has been furnished.

Rectified with effect from the year 2016.

The University Grants Commission Circular, 
No. 803, dated 16 May 2002 is applicable to the 
appointment of  Project Managers to the permeant 
service of the University under the salary scale 
U-EX 2.
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(d) University Grants 
Commission Circular 
No. 803 dated 16 
May 2002 and Third 
Paragraph of the Letter 
No.DMS/7777/TDP/
SJP dated 16 September 
2014 of the Director 
General of Management 
Services.

When recruiting the 
officers to the posts of 
Project  Manager, Project 
Administrative Officer, 
Quantity Surveyor and 
the Technical Officer 
required to the Urban 
Development Project 
of the University, those 
recruitments had been 
made irrespective 
of the educational 
qualifications

Recruitments to the Urban Development Project 
had been made on contract basis, and those 
recruitments had been made solely for the said 
project. As such, the said Circular, is not relevant 
thereto.

It has been proposed to prioritize  the Urban 
Development Project of the University by utilizing 
the provisions amounting to Rs. 148 million 
allocated in terms of  the Cabinet Memorandum 
dated 2013.11.22 for the years 2013, and 2014. 
As such, it appears that this is not a project with a 
value of over 05 million Dollars that the Circular, 
No. 2007/33 is applicable to. 

However, recruitments have been made properly.  
The Soratha Mawatha Project has a duration of 03 
years, and is scheduled to be completed in this 
year

2.5 Transactions not Supported by an Adequate Authority

The following observations are made.

(a.) Without obtaining the approval of the 
University Grants Commission in terms of Section 
45.2 (XV) of the Universities Act, No.16 of 1978, 
a sum of Rs.153 million had been invested in 
fixed deposits during the year under review. Out 
of the funds usable for the physical and academic 
development of the University, the total amount 
thus invested in the fixed deposits as at the end of 
the year under review was Rs.862 million.

According to 45.2 (xv) of the Universities Act, the 
authority to invest funds is vested in the Council. 
Hence, it is kindly requested to remove the audit 
paragraph. The approval of the Treasury has 
been sought for the investments that existed as at 
2016.12.31. The recommendations granted by the 
Ministry of Higher Education in this connection, 
have been sent to the Treasury for approval.  

(b.)	 Without approval of the Ministry of 
Higher Education, the University had recruited 
61 Temporary Demonstrators and Instructors 
exceeding the approved cadre of the academic 
staff included in the Human Resources Plan. It 
had been reported to audit that, the increase in 
the number of student enrollments and increase 
in the number of courses had attributed to the 
above recruitment.

By taking into account the vacancies and the 
savings from the salaries and allowances of the 
Lecturers obtaining no-pay leave, and considering 
the savings of the funds allocated to the University, 
action had been taken to recruit Demonstrators 
and Instructors, and pay salaries and allowances. 
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3. Financial Review

3.1 Financial Result

According to the financial statements presented, 
the operations of the University for the year under 
review had resulted in a deficit of Rs.17,883,619 
as against the surplus of Rs. 145,069,392 for the 
preceding year, thus indicting a deterioration of 
Rs.162,953,011 in the financial results during 
the year under review as compared with the 
preceding year. Although the Government Grants 
had increased by Rs.529,744,143, decrease in the 
internal income by Rs.41,135,151 and increase 
in 8 items of expenditure by Rs.636,061,991 had 
mainly attributed to the above deterioration.

Agreed

An analysis of the financial results of the year 
under review and four preceding years revealed 
that, the surplus in the years 2011 had turned out 
to be a deficit in the year 2012 and it had gradually 
increased again and had become a surplus by the 
year 2014, whereas it had deteriorated by 112 per 
cent in the year under review. When taking into 
consideration the employees’ remuneration and 
the depreciation for the non-current assets, the 
contribution amounting to Rs.2,629,820,066 in 
the year 2011 had gradually deteriorated up to a 
negative value by the year 2013 and  thereafter 
it had gradually increased and had become 
Rs.2,234,235,101 by the end of the year under 
review. 

3.2 Unusual Increase in the Expenditure

The travelling expenses amounting to Rs.9.97 
million in the preceding year had increased up to 
Rs.27.59 million by Rs.17.62 million during the 
year under review. The expenditure for the foreign 
tours in the year under review amounted to Rs. 
23.57 million and it represented 85.43 per cent of 
the total travelling expenditure.

It is necessary to constantly work with foreign 
universities, and research institutions. The 
University gains many benefits therefrom through 
the exchange of resources. Funds that have been 
earned are utilized on such foreign tours, and 
the approval of the Ministry of Higher Education 
have been obtained for those foreign tours.  
Furthermore, in obtaining sabbatical leave , it is 
not possible to compute the estimates accurately 
for the matters, such as bearing the expenses on 
air tickets. This amount is equal to 6.85 per cent 
of the income earned. Those expenses are also 
included herein.
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3.3 Legal Cases Instituted Against the University

(a.) A case in respect of taking over a land named 
“Hemavimana”  for the expansion of the activities 
of the Examination Division had been filed against 
the University by the owner of the respective land 
in the Sri Lanka Human Rights Commission.  

A complaint has been lodged with the Human 
Rights Commission by the Attorney  in respect 
of the land named “Hemavimana”. After being 
acquired by the Divisional Secretary under the 
land acquisition process, the land has been vested 
in the University. As the owner of the land is not 
satisfied with the valuation of the  Department 
of Valuation at present, no payment has been 
made for the land. A sum of Rs. 2.5 million has 
been deposited in the custody of the Divisional 
Secretary. It has been decided by the University to 
pay the amount agreed upon by the Department 
of Valuation, the  Divisional Secretary, and the 
owner of the land.

(b.)	 Three officers had filed 03 cases in the 
Labour Tribunal against the dismissal, termination 
and not granting service extension while another 
three officers had filed 03 cases against the 
University in the court in connection with sending 
retirement, treating as vacated the service and 
non-payment of Gratuity.

Action will be taken in accordance with the 
decisions of the verdicts. 

4. Operating Review

4.1 Performance

The following observations are made on the 
progress of the conduct of lectures according to 
the Lecture Norm Plan and the Action Plan of the 
Department of Social Sciences and Humanities.

(a.)	 The minimum number of lecture hours 
required to be allocated according to the Lecture 
Norm Plan had not been allocated to 11 lecturers 
out of the 18 permanent lecturers served in the 
Department. Accordingly, a female lecturer who is 
required to cover at least 12 hours in a week had 
not been allocated even a single lecture hour.

What is shown here is the work plan provided 
with respect to a half year.  The situation has 
changed in the other half year. The time taken  for 
issuing instructions  on the  tutorials, field trips, 
assignments and research discussions, and self- 
study tutorials, has not been included therein. 
Hence, such a decrease is indicated. 

The services of two Visiting Lecturers have been 
obtained on Analysis, and Forensic Medicine.

(b.) Although there were 11 lecturers who had 
not been granted the minimum number of lecture 
hours, the service of two visiting lecturers had 
been obtained for 150 lecture hours relating to 05 
subjects.

Although an increase in the lecture hours is 
indicated, the participation of the students with the 
relevant Lecturers in field trips, and miscellaneous 
institutional training, is not shown in the reports 
on the attendance to the lectures.
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(c.) It was observed that the coverage of the 
syllabus of 22 subjects within an academic period 
of 15 weeks had been at a lower range from 47 per 
cent to 73 per cent.

There are 03 degree courses being conducted by 
this Department , and the gazette notification has 
been issued to separately establish 02 Departments 
out of those Departments. Accordingly, the issues 
will be sorted out when preparing the Lecture 
Norm Plan in the future.

4.2 Management Inefficiencies

The following observations are made.

(a.) In order to follow a Doctorate degree under 
the assistance granted by the National Center 
for Advanced Studies in Humanities and Social 
Sciences (NCAS) of the University Grants 
Commission, an agreement had been entered into 
with a professor of the Department of Sinhala and 
Mass Media on 08 November 2006 and provisions 
amounting to Rs. 250,000 had been granted. 
Although the Doctorate degree had not been 
completed despite the lapse of 09 years by the end 
of the year under review, no action whatsoever 
had been taken by the University in that respect.

In the event  of a failure to complete the research 
in the year 2016 following his request,  action will 
be taken to recover the research allowance.

(b.) A block of land, 10.7 perches in extent 
belonging to the University had been leased out 
to the People’s Bank for a period of 25 years 
and having reached to a concurrence to vest the 
relevant building with the University at the end of 
the period of lease, an agreement had been entered 
into by both parties. Nevertheless, that agreement 
had not been registered. Further, this building 
had not been assessed once in every 05 year as 
required by the agreement and the rental had been 
recovered on the assessed value pertaining to the 
year 2008. Accordingly, an adequate rental had 
not been recovered.

Action will be taken in the future to obtain a new 
assessment report. 
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(c.) As cheques had been issued without correctly 
assessing the cash receipts and the time periods 
relating to those receipts, there were negative 
balances in the cash book in several instances 
during the year under review. Accordingly, 
instances where this negative balances had 
increased up to Rs.139 million were also observed.

In general, cash balances of the bank accounts 
maintained by the University, do not indicate 
negative values under any circumstance.

The outstanding balance has arisen in the cash 
book as the funds have been accounted as at the 
last date of the month, instead of being accounted 
as at the date of the receipt of funds from the 
Treasury. Action has been taken to correctly 
account based on the date  of receipt  with effect 
from November 2015. In general,  the balances 
of the bank accounts of the University can not be 
negative. 

4.3 Operating Inefficiencies 

(a) For the project initiated by the University of 
Sri Jayawardenapura in the year 2011 under the 
world university project implemented with the 
objective of upgrading the local universities to a 
higher standard among the universities in all over 
the world, provisions amounting to Rs.121.69 
million had been granted by the end of the year 
under review. The following observations are 
made in this connection.

(i) Although a sum of Rs.117.24 million had been 
spent from the inception of the project up to the 
end of the year under review, a sum of Rs.22.76 
million of that sum had been utilized for the 
expenses outside the estimate and irrelevant to 
the project.

The summary on 18 research reports furnished, 
is shown below. 

Researches for which theses  
have been furnished 

05

Researches for which progress 
reports have been furnished

02

Extension of time, and 
the researches progressing 
continuously

04

Abandoned researches 05
Reports not furnished 02

Action has been taken to grant provisions 
allocated to the researches abandoned, to new 
researches. 

(iii) Although laboratory equipment valued 
at Rs.68 million had been purchased with the 
intention of providing common laboratory 
facilities for the promotion of researches, those 
equipment had been under the custody of the 
Faculty of Applied and Medical Sciences even by 
the end of the year under review. Although a sum 
of Rs. 495,664 had been spent for the reservation 
of space facilities for the common laboratory, it 
had been abandoned subsequently.

It was decided at the commencement of the 
project to establish this laboratory at the official 
residence of the Vice Chancellor. However,  due 
to lack of space following the decision taken 
by the Government  to establish a faculty for 
engineering and technology, the offices of the 
faculties of the engineering and technology were 
established in this house. This has been in use 
since the year 2015 for the activities such as,  
preparation of preliminary plans relating to the  
establishment of those faculties, conducting the 
meetings of the consultancy committee on the 
improvement of subject streams, and maintaining 
the offices of the academic, administrative and 
non-academic staff. As such, the expense of Rs. 
495,664.00 incurred on the repairs of this house 
which needed repairs, was not futile.



University of Sri Jayewardenepura
Annual Report 2015 131

(iv) The University which stood at the 5330 rank 
among the other universities in the world in the 
year of commencement of the project in 2011 
had advanced  up to the rank of 2758 in the year 
2012 and it had declined up to the rank of 3091 
by June in the preceding year. According to the 
reports published in September of the year under 
review, the rank of the University had further gone 
down up to 4268.

Accordingly it was observed that, the University 
had failed to achieve an operating performance 
sufficient to satisfy the measurements and 
components required for upgrading the Sri 
Jayawardenapura University to a higher rank 
within the world university grading even during 
the year under review.

Attention will be drawn thereon. 

(b) For 17 consultants appointed for the proposed 
Faculty of Engineering and Technology, a sum of 
Rs. 8,025,000 had been paid as allowances up to 
30 June in the year under review. When enquiring 
about the approvals of the University Grants 
Commission and the Department of Management 
Services and the basis used for the determination 
of the allowances, it had been reported to audit 
that the relevant expenditure had been incurred as 
preliminary expenses of the Faculty of Engineering 
and Technology on the approval of the Council.

It was scheduled to enroll students for those 02 
faculties since the year 2016. As this University 
lacks the subject experts to establish and implement 
the mission, courses/ Syllabus, and infrastructure 
of those 02 faculties in accordance with the 
norms accepted locally and internationally, it was 
compulsory to appoint Consultancy Committees 
for preliminary planning.  As, it was necessary to 
obtain the services of the scholars with subject 
knowledge and expertise, those Consultants 
have been appointed from the Government  
Universities on short-term basis. Approval of the 
Council has been obtained for their appointments 
and the allowances paid to them.

4.4 Underutilization of Funds

Although the Reward Funds comprising the funds 
granted by the donors for awarding rewards to the 
students who demonstrate various skills should be 
invested to maintain those funds without turning 
into the zero in value, out of 73 Reward Funds 
totalling Rs. 22,525,707 as at the end of the year 
under review, only a sum of Rs.17,636,055 had 
been invested.

Once the expenses of the year to be incurred by 
the reward funds, are estimated, action will be 
taken to invest the funds in excess. 

A sum of Rs. 2.2 million was invested in the year 
2016.
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4.5 Idle and Underutilized Assets 

The following observations are made.

(a.) Although the tenure of the land, 41.31 
perches in extent purchased  with the objective 
of providing hostel facilities for 300 students at 
Rs.1.6 million on 05 May 1998 had been vested 
in the University on 06 August 2003, the land had 
not been utilized for the relevant purpose even up 
to the end of the year under review.

Approval has been granted by the Ministry to 
construct a housing scheme consisting of   22 
houses for the staff of the University. At present, 
action is being taken to obtain  the decision of 
the Procurement Committee of the Ministry.  It is 
scheduled to commence the construction of the 
housing scheme during the year 2017.

(b.) The stock balance of toners purchased 
for the computer printers and the photocopy 
machines included the obsolete and slow moving 
stocks valued at Rs. 4,323,216 and as a result 
of purchasing 19 kinds of toners despite the 
availability of a considerable stock and without 
placing orders in keeping with the requirements, 
a stock of toners valued at Rs. 2,021,408 had 
remained in the stores unattended.

A Committee has been appointed in this 
connection, and a report of inquiry has been 
obtained. The Committee has recommended to 
write off this stock purchased for the year 2013, 
from the books. 

Action has been taken to take a policy decision in 
this regard. 

(c.) There was a stock of paints valued at Rs. 
191,416, textiles valued at Rs. 377,087 and 
computer diskettes valued at Rs.73,138 older than 
05 years, whereas action had not been taken to  
properly dispose of those stocks or to take other 
suitable steps.

Paints are issued from time to time. Action will be  
taken to auction the textiles.

4.6 Identified Losses 

The following observations are made.

The approval of the Cabinet of Ministers had been 
granted for the Drain Water Disposal Project of 
the University with the contract valued at Rs.70 
million on 06 August 2003 and a sum of Rs. 
2,336,090 had been paid to the Water Supply and 
Drainage Board for the preparation of preliminary 
plans relating to the said constructions. Without 
being recovered the money paid for this project 
which had been discontinued halfway, it had 
been brought forward in the Work-In-Progress 
Account.

The preliminary plan in this connection had 
been completed by the Water Supply and 
Drainage Board. However, as the Urban Councils 
(Boralesgamuwa / Maharagama) had commenced 
projects relating to the disposal of waste water, 
the possibility of connecting the disposal of waste 
water of the University thereto, had been taken into 
consideration. Hence, the University had decided 
to abandon the project as further implementation 
of this project would  not be  productive.
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4.7 Personnel Administration

The following observations are made.

(a.) The approved cadre of the University as at 31 
December of the year under review stood at 1853, 
out of which the posts relating to 293 officers had 
remained vacant. It included 121 vacancies of the 
posts of Lecturer and it had been an impediment 
to achieve the objectives of the University.

The vacancies of the non-academic staff have been 
filled. Action is being taken to fill the vacancies of 
the academic staff.

(b.) Although permanent appointments had been 
granted for 9 Senior Professors, 51 Professors 
promoted on merit basis and 7 Associate 
Professors, the approval of the Department of 
Management Services had not been obtained for 
those newly created posts. 

As the promotions were made on merit basis, and 
in a timely manner, approval is not relevant.

(c.) Although approval had been obtained only for 
210 posts of Temporary Lecturer, Demonstrator 
and the Tutors, 54 persons exceeding that amount 
had been recruited.

By taking into account the savings of the salaries 
and allowances of the Lecturers, and considering 
the savings of the funds allocated to the University, 
action has been taken to recruit Demonstrators 
and Tutors. 

(d.) Nine posts of Typists and 8 posts of 
Stenographer which were not currently important 
had been in vacant, whereas attention had not 
been drawn on the creation of timely important 
posts in lieu of those posts.

The Treasury has been requested to include those 
amendments in the employee estimate requests  
for the year 2016.

(e.) The total number of staff recruited 
permanently and temporarily to the approved 
and unapproved posts was 1681. Accordingly, 
the cost per employee of the year under review 
was Rs. 1,152,475 and it was Rs. 914,638 in the 
preceding year, thus indicating an increase of Rs. 
237,837 in the cost per employee.

The unit cost has increased as salaries and 
allowances have been increased.

(f.) In terms of to Section 20.5 of Chapter X 
of the Establishments Code of the University 
Grants Commission and the Higher Education 
Institutions, the Saturdays, Sundays and public 
holidays fall within the period of no pay leave 
should be reckoned as the days on no pay leave. 
Nevertheless, certain employees who were on no 
pay leave on Fridays and Mondays had not been 
dealt with considering the Saturdays and Sundays 
as the days on no pay leave.

Action will be taken in accordance with Paragraph 
05 of Chapter 20 of the Establishments Code. 
The relevant officers have been informed by the 
Registrar that action should further be taken as per 
those rules. Furthermore, instructions  required to 
act and rectify  accordingly have been issued,  in 
order to recover from those who did not comply 
with the Establishments Code.
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(g.)	 A Probationary Lecturer recruited for a 
vacancy of a post of lecturer in the Department of 
Finance on 15 July 2015 on a request of the Head 
of the Department had been granted academic 
leave for a period of 5 years with effect from 11 
August 2015, which was, 6 days after he assumed 
duties. In granting approval for this lecturer ,who 
was expeditiously recruited for making the affairs 
of the Department of Finance easy, to proceed 
abroad on full pay leave subsequent to a service 
of 6 days, no attention had been drawn on taking 
steps in a manner not to hinder the maintenance 
of affairs of the University.

In accordance with the provisions set out in 
the Circular, No. 88 of the Commission, it is 
possible for any Lecturer to obtain leave to read 
for a doctorate. Accordingly, the Council of the 
University has been assigned through the Circular, 
No. 429 of the Commission  to decide on the 
timing of granting study leave to a probationary 
Lecturer. 

After considering the leave taken  as of 2015.08.06, 
and the recommendation of the main Committee, 
leave for 2 years from 2015.08.11 to 2017.08.10 
had been approved at the 440th session of the 
Council held on 2013.08.13

Meetings of the Council of the University are held 
according to a preplanned timetable. As such, his 
leave was approved by the meeting of the Council 
held nearest to  his date of leave. 

By taking into account the aforesaid explanation, it 
is kindly requested to remove the audit paragraph. 

(h.) Although a Probationary female Lecturer 
who had been recruited on 06 April 2006 should 
be obtained a post graduate degree within a 
probationary period of 03 years and submit 
the research report in accordance with Section 
21.1.1 of Chapter III of the Establishments Code 
relating to the University Grants Commission and 
Higher Education Institutions, the post graduate 
degree had not been obtained within the period 
of probation. Although the above Section further 
specifies that the service should be terminated in 
case of failure to obtain the post graduate degree 
within 6 years, contrary to that, a further period of 
03 years had been granted.

This Lecturer had obtained her Doctorate in the 
year 2015. Hence, it is kindly requested to revise 
the audit paragraph.

4.8 Utilization of Vehicles

The following observations are made. 

(a.) There were 15 allocated vehicles and 30 
pool vehicles belonging to the University as 
at 31 December of the year under review and 
05 of which had been at condemned position. 
Although all other vehicles except the vehicles 
reserved for the officers should be included in 
the pool and maintained properly, some vehicles 
had been deployed for the affairs of the academic 
departments without proper supervision. 

Action is being taken to auction the condemned 
vehicles. 

Vehicles are utilized based on the service 
requirements of the University.
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(b.) In the preparation of vehicle log books and 
daily running charts according to the Financial 
Regulation 1645 and monthly summary on 
the tours according to the Financial Regulation 
1646, adequate care had not been exercised on 
the instructions in the Financial Regulations. 
Furthermore, action had not been taken according 
to Financial Regulation 1646 to systematically 
furnish the reports on the relevant running charts 
to the Auditor General 

Instructions have been issued to report 
appropriately.

5. Accountability and Good Governance 

5.1 Internal Audit 

An adequate number of officers had not been 
deployed for the Internal Audit Division and the 
staff consisted of the Deputy Internal Auditor and 
3 officers of the Clerk Grade only.

No vacancies exist at present, and requests have 
been made to increase the number of employees. 
Once the cadre position for the year 2016 is 
approved by the Treasury, action will be taken to 
deploy an adequate number of officers.

5.2 Budgetary Control

While the actual internal income was Rs. 305.84 
million in the preceding year, the internal income 
of the year under review had been estimated at 
Rs.188.01 million. However, the actual income 
of the year under review was Rs. 443.68 million 
and an income exceeding 136 per cent of the 
estimation had been earned. Accordingly, it was 
observed that income estimates had not been 
prepared realistically so as to use the budget as 
an instrument of financial control. A trend of 
underestimating the internal income was also 
observed.

The fluctuation in the income depends  on the 
external courses conducted by the University. 
Hence, it is not possible to estimate the actual 
income precisely.

5.3 Unresolved Audit Paragraphs 

The following observations are made. 

(a.) The academic allowances of Rs. 1,437,882 
included in the salaries paid to a female lecturer 
released for service in the Government or 
Government affiliated institutions on the basis of 
salary reimbursement and had been informed that 
it could not be reimbursed from the institution 
concerned and as such it had not been recovered 
from the relevant lecturer.

In accordance with the recommendation of the 
Committee on Public  Enterprises, action has been 
taken to inform the Secretary to the Ministry Of 
Defence through the Secretary to the Ministry of 
Higher Education and Highways by emphasizing 
that the sum of Rs. 1,437,882.00 recoverable from 
this lady should be reimbursed. 
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(b.) A sum of Rs.24 million had been paid to the 
Western Provincial Council in the year 1994 for 
the purchase of a block of land 05 acres in extent 
from the “Methsevana” land for the Faculty of 
Medicine. Nevertheless, the activities relating to the 
taking over of the relevant land were progressing 
slowly and without assessing the block of  land 
already taken over and bringing it to account,  the 
total amount  paid had been further shown in the 
financial statements as unsettled capital advances.

As the taking over of the land “Methsevana” by the 
University has not been completed, the land could 
not be valued by the Government  Valuer. Once 
the value of the land is obtained after taking over, 
the capital advance will be settled and brought to 
account. 

(c.) Even though the land and the building situated 
at Kohuwala purchased for Rs. 61.5 million in the 
year 2014 had been transferred to the Institute of 
Aesthetic Studies of the University of Kelaniya  as 
they were not suitable for the requirements of the 
University,  this transfer had not been brought to 
account and an asset which was not being used by 
the University had been included in the financial 
statements.

As hostels for the students had to be obtained on 
rent for the University of Sri Jayewardenepura 
by the year 2014, University of Aesthetic Studies 
had been informed that this land and the 
building be transferred back to the University of 
Sri Jayewardenepura, or else, a sum of Rs. 250 
million be granted to obtain another hostel. This 
matter was discussed at the COPE meeting held 
on 07 March 2017, and it was informed that an 
agreement should be reached by discussing with 
the Secretary to the Ministry as this issue involved 
02 universities under the purview of the same 
Ministry. Action is taken accordingly.

6. Systems and Controls 

Deficiencies in systems and controls observed 
during the course of audit were brought to the 
notice of the Vice Chancellor of the University 
from time to time. Special attention is needed in 
respect of the following areas of control.

Action will be taken to draw special attention on 
the areas mentioned hereunder. 

Areas of System and 
Control

(a) Fixed Assets 
Management

(b) Accounting 

(c) Personnel 
Administration

(d) Management of Self 
Financing Courses.

(e) Internal Control 
over Research 
Assistance.

(f) Recovery of 
Agreements and Bonds

(g) Contract 
Administration

Observations

Failure to update the 
Register of Fixed Assets 
and not paying attention 
on the revaluation of 
assets.

Deviation from 
the accrual basis 
and accounting of 
depreciations.

Failure to make 
recruitments properly. 

Failure to use surplus 
money properly.
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Professor Sampath Amarathunga

Vice Chancellor.

Poor follow-up action 
on the utilization of  
Research Assistance and 
progress reviewing at a 
weak level. 

Failure to adequate 
steps to expedite the 
recovery process.

Failure to draw attention 
on the Procurement 
Guidelines.


